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Growing bigger and better in the future. This was the 
motto that drove Racional’s positioning in 2011 and led to 
the adoption of two macro actions.

Firstly, we opted for a strategic slowdown of our successive 
growth rates recorded in recent years, which allowed 
us to put in place a broad internal restructuring project 
with a focus on Sustainability, Knowledge Management, 
Corporate Education, and Information Technology.

In practice, this meant a closer look inside our management 
structure by completing a series of initiatives. We invested 
in staff training through the Leadership Development 
Program and in training of construction teams. We also 
started designing our Corporate Web Portal, which will 
be an important online tool for integration of processes 
and for leveraging our existing Knowledge Management 
model. Through the development of these and other 
initiatives, Racional is set to meet growing demand for 
construction projects, without compromising key aspects 
such as quality, efficiency and customer focus.

The other macro action undertaken by Racional in 2011 
led to the effective division between the Engineering 
and Construction Business and the Real Estate Portfolio. 
By taking into account the nature and characteristics 
of each of these business areas, we designed a new 
corporate structure around a single vision. In doing so, 
we maintained Racional Engenharia focused on the 
Engineering and Construction segment and created 
Racional Empreendimentos, a business aimed at the 
development and management of real estate projects 
that make up its portfolio. Each company maintains 
its own identity, while sharing the same principles, 
fundamentals and a clear vision that will guide their 
future, as well as projects and goals to be achieved 
that will follow a strategic roadmap with clearly defined 
targets for each activity.

Another key differentiator of this new organizational 
design is the synergy between the two businesses. 
Racional Engenharia is a knowledge intensive company, 
while Racional Empreendimentos is a capital oriented 

company. Both are businesses with different strategies 
and performance indicators that are nevertheless 
complementary.

With these and other initiatives in place, we ended 2011 
with the certainty that our organizational structure has 
moved to a new growth level on a sustainable basis for 
the 2012-2013 biennium. The results were positive and 
reflected the expectations set for 2011.

Racional Engenharia’s equivalent revenues totaled 
R$866 million in 2011, an 8% increase over 2010 
and above the growth recorded by the Brazilian civil 
construction industry. This good performance proves 
that our decision to build a structure that will allow us 
to expand as of 2012 and prepare the Company for a 
new growth cycle was right. 

Based on the awareness that enabling dialogue 
and value creation for our stakeholders is also a key 
factor to ensure the sustainability of our business, 
we continually strive to seek economic, social and 
environmental balance in our activities. Therefore, for 
the first time, this report brings together the advances 
achieved by Racional Engenharia in the economic, 
social and environmental realms. These are the result 
of our ongoing efforts to strengthen the Company’s 
performance and commitment towards its employees, 
customers, suppliers, society, and the environment.

Since its inception, Racional Engenharia has been 
concerned with social and environmental issues across 
its production chain. Today, we are strengthening our 
positioning and expanding our scope of responsibility 
on a particular project by undertaking more specific 
programs geared to those three aspects.

The sum of all of these initiatives leads us to believe 
that we have the potential to produce even better 
results as of 2012. Thanks to our strategic positioning 
and the high energy of our staff, we feel strong and 
ready to meet future challenges and continue to pursue 
our growth targets.

MeSSAGe
FRoM THe Ceo

Newton Simões
CEO
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VISIon 
To be the most reliable brand in building development, 
construction and management by integrating its 
collective intelligence to build a better society.

PRInCIPLeS 
Racional Engenharia’s 40 year history has been 
marked by many challenges and achievements. In 
a significant moment of its history, the Company 
decided to look inside the organization and review its 
core principles to align them with everyday attitudes. 
Sustained by Racional’s Vision, the new Principles 
do not invalidate the previous statement, on the 
contrary, they reflect the Company’s evolution and 
the daily reality of its employees.

Engagement
We operate in line with our Fundamentals and 
remain committed to the future of our business.

People growth  
We are committed to the continuous development 
of our staff towards high performance by 
encouraging team spirit and respecting diversity. 
We take on responsibilities, we trust each other and 
we overcome challenges together. 

Systemic view 
We acknowledge interdependence between people 
and processes and take into account the short-, 
medium - and long-term implications of all our actions. 

Innovation 
We create a learning environment that is conducive to 
innovation. We continuously strive for improvements 
in our processes to ensure their high performance 
and reliability. 

Result oriented 
We ensure timely delivery of value adding results 
to the Brand, to our clients and other stakeholders, 
therefore turning knowledge into solutions. 

As one of the leaders in the Brazilian private civil 
construction market, Racional celebrates its 40 year long 
history with a new corporate structure that maintains the 
characteristics and particularity of each business area. 

The new corporate structure strengthens the Company’s 
positioning and offers complete and customized solutions 
to satisfy the specific needs and requirements of clients. 

Racional Engenharia maintains a diversified services 
portfolio in eight market segments: Industrial, Mission 
Critical Facilities, Shopping Malls and Retail, Healthcare, 
Hotels and Resorts, Logistics, Corporate, and Education 
and Culture. Through its Pre-Construction and Engineering 
services, Racional contributes its expertise in design 
conception by developing construction projects based on 
cost vs. value, while seeking to optimize costs and the 
best value alternative for the investment.

Furthermore, through Racional Empreendimentos, the 
Company has consolidated its position in Real Estate 
Portfolio management, where in addition to design and 
build, it also assumes the management of properties. 
Altogether, Racional has five completed projects in the 
Logistics and Corporate Building segments bearing 
these features, namely, the SulAmérica Convention 
Center, North Tower and South Tower, which make up 
the RioCidadeNova Business Complex in Rio de Janeiro; 
Centeranel Raposo Logistics Park, near the São Paulo 
Rodoanel (Ringroad), and Centeranel Viracopos Logistics 
Park at Indaiatuba in São Paulo State. 

With more than 500 construction projects delivered and 
seven million square meters of built up area, in 2011 
Racional Engenharia realized revenues in excess of R$ 
866 million, a 7.7% growth over 2010. This is the result of 
a strategic slowdown in the Company’s growth targets. 
Throughout 2011, Racional’s business was mainly 
focused on staff training, review of its management 
model, and on technology investment.

Based on this positioning, Racional Engenharia hopes 
to maintain its competitive edge in the Brazilian market 
by consolidating its business philosophy whereby 
construction is not just a brick-and-mortar business, but 
intelligence, ethics and respect for the environment are 
equally important.  

To this effect, Racional Engenharia will continue to 
invest in new processes, management and R&D of new 
technologies, as well as in the professional training of 
its employees. These are the pillars that will support the 
Company’s growth strategy in the coming years.

Furthermore, Racional Engenharia seeks to create 
value for society by adopting an ethical and transparent 
culture characterized by initiatives  anchored in  good 
environmental management practices and in the 
education and growth of its neighboring communities.

CoRPoRATe 
PRoFILe

oUR FUnDAMenTALS
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New Corporate Structure 

Strategic Management

Nuclear Structure

Knowledge Management

MAnAGeMenT 
MoDeL
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NEW CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Racional’s new Corporate Structure comprises three Business Areas with strong synergy 
between them: Engineering, Construction and Real Estate Portfolio. Considering the 
nature and characteristics of each of these areas and as a means to maintain greater 
discipline in management processes, the new Corporate Structure is centered around a 
single business strategy.

In the new corporate model, the Business Areas are bracketed together in two subsidiaries 
under Racional Participações (Holding Company): Racional Engenharia (Engineering and 
Construction) and Racional Empreendimentos (Real Estate Portfolio).

Corporate Governance - The system by which the 
business is managed and monitored, thereby engaging 
the entire Organization. Corporate Governance promotes 
accountability, transparency and fairness in management 
practices. Its purpose is to increase the Company’s value, 
facilitate access to capital and contribute to its growth 
and perpetuity. 

Brand - The Racional Brand is the Company’s key asset. It 
is perceived as a guarantee of reliability, performance and 
value and reflects Racional’s commitment to stakeholders 
through the promotion of sustainable development by 
seeking social, environmental and economic balance in 
all its decision-making.

Knowledge - To Racional, the essence of knowledge 
is in its effective implementation. Its main focus lies 
on the dynamics of innovation, performance excellence 
and the proper management of risks and opportunities. 
Knowledge management should be a systematic, 
disciplined and fact-based process anchored in the 
production, organization and accessibility of content. 

Human Potential - High performance and reliability of 
the Organization are the results of a set of quality human 
relationships. This strategic dimension relates to the 
recognition of the value of these relationships through 
the identification and development of each employee’s 
potential, as well as the promotion of an organizational 
climate that encourages interaction and synergy.

 • Strategic Planning

This methodology has been consolidated over the years 
by Racional and has brought about increasingly greater 
focus on results, consistency in investments, simplicity 
and transparency in business management practices. At 
Racional, strategic planning drives management actions 
within a previously set plan of strategies and goals, thus 
reducing the risk of wrong decision making. 

By adopting a corporate governance model and the 
development of a long term strategic plan, Racional 
maintains a clear definition of its Vision and Principles, 
as well as growth targets and return indicators for the 
entire Company.

nUCLeAR STRUCTURe 

Introduced in 2004, Racional’s nuclear structure model 
stands out from conventional structures (pyramidal and 
vertical) to build a new form of organization based on 
horizontality. Another key aspect of the nuclear structure 
model is its characteristic movement, which values 
interdependence, decentralization and the interaction 
between various company groups and employees. 
Furthermore, this model is based on a range of forums and 
committees responsible for disseminating information 
and decision making.

• Management Committees 

Meetings of Racional’s Executive Group are carried out 
with the aim of sharing information for collective decision-
making and ensuring the practice of interdependence.

Board of Directors (CD) - Responsible for devising and 
recommending strategic guidelines for the Company in 
the medium and long term. The CD sets annual targets for 
all nuclear structure groups, assesses their compliance 
relative to targets, and whenever necessary, deliberates 
on actions proposed by other Management Committees.

Investment Committee (COMIN) - Responsible for 
analysis and policy making of investments in the projects 
incorporated into the Real Estate Portfolio. The COMIN 
draws from evaluations from the investor’s perspective 
to propose criteria for financial discipline, liquidity and 
profitability that will drive the projects.

Business Development Committee (CODE) - Responsible 
for assessing market opportunities and future economic 
prospects, besides enabling the exchange of information 
on potential clients and competitors. Furthermore, the 
CODE meets weekly to discuss issues relating to corporate 
communication and new business development strategies.

Operational Committee (COPE) - Responsible for the 
exchange, assessment and proposal of policies and 
processes related to the Company’s operational issues at 
bimonthly meetings.

Strategic Resources Committee (CORE) - Responsible 
for the exchange of experiences and evaluation of 
proposed policies on issues related to People Growth, 
Sustainability and Information Technology.

STRATeGIC MAnAGeMenT

In its quest for excellence in operations and management, Racional adopts a unique 
business management model inspired by the Balanced Scorecard (BSC) methodology to 
ensure consistency and alignment with its growth objectives. This model is guided by a 
Strategic Roadmap, which is reviewed annually for incorporation of new corporate goals 
and targets creating a permanent cycle of planning, execution, control and corrective action 
(PDCA). The Strategic Roadmap is divided into four strategic dimensions, from which the 
Company’s targets and annual performance indicators are outlined.

• Strategic Dimensions

MANAGEMENT MODEL

Racional
Engenharia

Racional
Participações

(Holding Company)

Racional
Empreendimentos

Corporate
Governance

Knowledge

Human
Potential BrandStrategic

Dimensions
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• Alignment Forums 

These forums are intended to disseminate strategic content 
between leaders and their teams. As well as ensuring that 
decisions are made in an integrated and comprehensive manner 
by taking conflicts and different points of view into account, the 
forums serve as dissemination and communication channels for 
the business strategy.

Integration Seminar - An annual event that gathers together 
all Racional employees with the purpose of promoting staff 
integration, sharing the evolution of Racional’s Management 
Model, and reviewing the main Company strategies. It is also an 
open space for discussion, suggestions and answering employee 
questions.

Strategic Management Workshop - Biannual meeting created to 
further discussions on the Company’s strategy with the leadership, 
besides seeking contributions for implementing new management 
programs and continuous improvement of existing initiatives. 

Executive Group Meetings for Strategic Alignment - Quarterly 
meetings attended by the whole Executive Group for introduction 
of new proposals and discussions about the current scenario, while 
promoting the group’s alignment with the Company’s strategic 
positioning.
 
Team Meetings for Strategic Alignment - Four-monthly meetings 
held with the Company’s teams and their respective leaders, 
focusing on issues outside the operational field towards a better 
workplace environment and employee relationship.

Result Meetings - Monthly meetings held with the purpose of 
gauging economic and financial results of contracts underway, 
while evaluating risks and opportunities of the respective projects.

Contract Setup Meeting (RECON) - A meeting where the 
contract manager and/or engineering manager is introduced to the 
new construction project with presentation about the client, main 
contract features, its risks, opportunities and critical factors. The 
main purpose of the RECON is to inform on the contract’s added 
value and the targets to be met by the construction team during 
execution of the works.   

Construction Work Alignment Meetings (RAO) - Weekly or 
bimonthly meetings aimed at promoting discussion on everyday 
construction-related issues, monitoring result targets defined 
for the contract, assessing difficulties and proposing corrective 
action to address those difficulties. Meetings are coordinated by 
the construction manager or coordinator and are attended by the 
whole construction team.  

Contract Finalization Meeting (REFIN) - Held upon execution of 
each contract, this meeting promotes the exchange of information 
about the rights and wrongs of the contract, thus facilitating 
organizational learning. During the meeting, the fulfillment of the 
contract’s added value and of result targets is also discussed.

KnoWLeDGe MAnAGeMenT 

Racional works so that Knowledge Management can be 
consolidated into a systematic process to ensure the 
creation of a learning and knowledge sharing oriented 
culture among all.

This model is an evolution of Process Management, which 
also functions as a knowledge database, but its focus is 
on the process itself. The main purpose of this model is 
to stimulate knowledge management in order to facilitate 
the management of processes and contribute to the 
achievement of business goals, thus ensuring the quality of 
service provided to clients.

Racional.net
Developed in 2011, Racional’s Corporate Web Portal is a 
virtual environment which contributes to greater Company 
integration and adds value to business processes through 
the digital environment.

Racional.net is fully aligned with the concept of Knowledge 
Management and is designed to stimulate knowledge 
sharing and produce corporate intelligence as a means to 
improve internal communication, promote innovation, reduce 
operating costs and the incidence of errors. Above all, it is an 
effective tool for employee integration. 

Lessons Learned Program
Introduced by Racional in 2000, the Lessons Learned 
Program was one of the first Knowledge Management 
initiatives implemented by the Company. Upon completion of 
a construction work, a meeting is held with all those involved 
in the project and other teams from other projects/areas with 
the purpose of providing a reflection on key technical and 
managerial aspects. It is a formal dissemination of errors 
and successes identified during each construction project to 
ensure organizational learning and avoid the recurrence of 
errors in future projects.

MANAGEMENT MODEL
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RACIONAL ENGENHARIA

Market Segments

Engineering

Construction

Financial Performance

RACIONAL EMPREENDIMENTOS AND SUBSIDIARIES

RioCidadeNova Business Complex 

Logistics Parks

Financial Performance

oPeRATIonAL AnD 
FInAnCIAL 
PeRFoRMAnCe
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OPERATIONAL AND 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

RACIONAL ENGENHARIA

MARKET SEGMENTS

One of Racional’s key differentiators is its ability to serve various 
market segments by seeking to understand their needs, while 
identifying their values, best practices and major risk factors.

In its four decades of existence, the company has strengthened 
its relationship with its diverse audiences, which are divided into 
eight market segments: Industrial, Mission Critical Facilities, 
Shopping Malls and Retail, Healthcare, Hotels and Resorts, 
Logistics, and Education and Culture.

The recognition of the uniqueness of each of these segments 
is enhanced by Racional’s impressive customer loyalty record 
– currently more than 60% of the Company’s construction 
portfolio consists of recurring clients. 

To offer complete solutions and ensure the performance 
expected by its clients, Racional operates through two Business 
Areas, which are interdependent and complementary:

ENGINEERING

In its quest for the best cost vs value relationship in the Brazilian 
construction industry, Racional offers project management 
services through its Engineering and Pre-Construction 
solutions that provide clients with a better risk assessment 
and uncertainty and cost reduction, besides providing greater 
confidence in decision making.

Engineering and Pre-Construction services are characterized 
by the validation of the project’s scope and guidelines, as 
well as sustainability and constructability studies, preliminary 
designs, value engineering, licenses and permits, planning 
time and costs, and pricing.

Another key differentiator provided by Racional, which 
complements the Engineering and Pre-Construction phase, is 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), a contract modality 
which uses a ceiling amount for the total construction cost.  

As well as strengthening the relationship and trust with 
clients, Engineering and Pre-Construction services are useful 
when designing a product with the best construction solutions 
and the best cost vs. value relationship as regards use and 
sustainability.   

As a measure of the positive market response to this 
personalized and differentiated service, in 2011 70% of 
the construction projects undertaken by Racional relied on 
Engineering and Pre-Construction services. For 2012, ten out 
of the 16 projects in Racional’s portfolio are expected to be 
contracted under this format. 

CONSTRUCTION

During the Construction phase, Racional operates in 
a comprehensive manner as leader of the project’s 
construction process from the Engineering and Pre-
Construction phase or from projects previously 
established by the client.

In 2011, Racional had 19 construction projects 
underway, nine of which were shopping malls. Out 
of this total, eight projects were completed during 
the year. The highlights are the delivery of the second 
phase of Centeranel Raposo Logistics Park, of the 
CEDAE Corporate Building, besides four shopping malls 
(Iguatemi Alphaville, ParkShoppingSãoCaetano, Mooca 
Plaza Shopping and Polo Shopping Indaiatuba). These 
projects are characterized by great complexity and are, 
therefore, aligned with the DNA of the Company, which 
prioritizes developments of greater added value. For 
2012, Racional already has 16 projects to its portfolio, 
such as the upgrade of the Globo TV Network studios in 
Rio de Janeiro, the construction of a large datacenter for a 
financial institution and construction of the Village Mall in 
Rio de Janeiro,  likely to be one of the most sophisticated 
shopping malls in Brazil. The biggest challenge facing the 
Globo TV Network retrofit project is the general upgrade 
of the buildings where the news and sports teams work 
due to the coverage of large sporting events, such as the 
FIFA World Cup and the Olympics, without compromising 
the teams’ everyday activities.

With these projects, along with two other large-scale 
projects in the Corporate segment undertaken in 2010 – the 
Class A buildings Z Tower and Morumbi Corporate Tower 
–  Racional continues to diversify its construction portfolio, 
raising the Company’s profile to a new level beyond 
construction of shopping malls.

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2011

CEITEC - National Center for Advanced
Electronic Technology - Rio Grande do Sul State

2nd phase of Centeranel Raposo Logistics Park -
São Paulo State

CEDAE Corporate Building – Rio de Janeiro State

Indaiatuba Polo Shopping Mall – São Paulo State

Iguatemi Alphaville Shopping Mall – São Paulo State

ParkShoppingSãoCaetano Mall – São Paulo State

Mooca Plaza Shopping Mall – São Paulo State

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2011, Racional decided for a strategic slowdown and 
focused on preparing the Company for a new growth cycle 
on a sustainable basis as of the 2012/2013 biennium.

This positioning, combined with investments made in IT, 
communications, education, and training of employees, 
reflected  on the Company’s financial performance 
during the year. The key 2011 performance indicators 
remained on the same level as 2010, even though there 
was a 7.7% increase in equivalent revenues, which 
totaled R$866 million in 2011 against R$804 million in 2010.

Racional’s contribution margin totaled R$62 million in 
2011, a 1,3% increase over 2010 (R$ 61 million).  

The Company’s EBITDA grew by 3.3%, from R$33 
million in 2010 to R$34 million in 2011. Net profit in 2011 
remained at R$29 million, the same recorded in 2010. 

It should be noted that in 2011, when the Company’s 
corporate restructuring took place, part of the assets 
pertaining to investments in companies connected 
to Racional Engenharia was incorporated by Racional 
Empreendimentos (see explanatory note No 1 on page 37).
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Contribution Margin
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

Equivalent Revenue
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

Ebitda
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Net Earnings
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

5,4

19,3

23,8

28,9 29,0

29,9

46,5
44,0

61,2 62,1

10,9

25,4

33,0 34,1

24,6

515,4

620,1

553,3

803,8
865,7

OPERATIONAL AND 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

RACIonAL enGenHARIA

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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SulAmérica Convention Center

With 24,000 square meters of built area and capacity for up to 6,000 people, the SulAmérica Convention 
Center boasts a ground floor, mezzanine floor with five rooms and a second floor exclusive for corporate 
events, conferences, private functions, graduation parties, trade fairs, exhibitions, celebrations, and 
other commercial and promotional activities.

This venue stands out for its state-of-the-art facilities, for its location, latest technology and climate-
controlled environments. It also offers complete services infrastructure – catering, audio and video, 
telephony and internet systems, and furniture, among other services.

The SulAmérica Convention Center also comprises a listed three-story building erected in 1869 and 
heavily influenced by Italian style architecture of the 16th century. The building is now fully restored 
and is also used for events.

In 2011, the Convention Center met all its projected targets. The venue has benefited from the 
introduction of Racional’s own management and from the two major sporting events scheduled to 
take place in the city of Rio de Janeiro this decade (the 2014 FIFA World Cup and the 2016 Olympic 
Games). As a result, its occupancy rate has increased significantly, from 30% in 2010 to 39% in 2011.

 

Occupancy Rate

For 2012, this promising scenario is expected to continue with a 4% growth in revenue and a significant 
increase in occupancy rate. Out of the projected sales volume for the year, 78% had been sold by year 
end 2011. This means that the amount of contracts already signed for 2012 has tripled when compared 
to the previous year, while the loyalty rate remains high, which enhances the user’s perception as to the 
high added value of this project and its recognition by the market. 

Revenue Growth

Corporate Buildings – North and South Towers

The North and South Towers offer an intelligent space solution by incorporating sustainability concepts. 
The North Tower is fully occupied by SulAmérica insurance company headquarters, while the South 
Tower is occupied by four major corporations. To add even greater value to this business complex and 
meet local needs, the facility has covered parking for 1,500 vehicles. The car park is fully automated, 
totally safe and is connected to a subway station.

PROJECT BUILDING TYPE LOCATION TOTAL AREA LEASABLE AREA STATUS
    (sqm) (sqm)

RioCidadeNova Business Complex 

SulAmérica Convention Center Convention Center Rio de Janeiro 24,000 13,900  In operation

Torre Norte (North Tower) Corporate Building Rio de Janeiro 23,500 21,560  In operation

Torre Sul (South Tower) Corporate Building Rio de Janeiro 11,000 9,572  In operation
Logistics Parks 
Centeranel Raposo Logistics Park São Paulo 180,000 105,274 In operation 
Centeranel Viracopos Logistics Park Indaiatuba 175,000 80,000 Project under design

236,4%
-11,4%

42,7%

45,7%

 2008 2009 2010 2011

22,1%
19,6%

30,0%

39,0%

 2008 2009 2010 2011

OPERATIONAL AND 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

RACIONAL EMPREENDIMENTOS AND SUBSIDIARIES
In 2011, Racional took a major step to consolidate its role as a developer of 
logistics and corporate facilities as it assumed full management of properties 
that comprise its Real Estate Portfolio.

With this, the Company no longer outsources the management of those 
properties, thus strengthening the relationship with its clients, whose needs 
and demands can now be met with greater agility and assertiveness.

Another gain from this relationship is that the perception of those properties’ 
occupants as to the space and the materials used in construction can be taken 
to Racional Engenharia for improvement of future production. Thanks to this 
new positioning, clients began to refer Racional to other partners, therefore 
allowing the Company to expand its contact network and strengthen its 
foothold in the market.

Furthermore, through the structuring of Racional Empreendimentos in late 
2011, Racional has boosted its activities in the real estate market, thus ensuring 
a more competitive positioning in this sector with significant growth prospects 
for the coming years by undertaking projects beyond the states of São Paulo 
and Rio de Janeiro.

In this business model, besides designing and building, the Company also 
assumes the full property management in the market segments of Logistics 
and Corporate Buildings. This ensures diversification of its business through 
profitable and cash generating development projects that allow mitigation of 
risks posed by the civil construction market volatility.  

Currently, Racional Empreendimentos own five properties under its Real Estate 
Portfolio:

RIOCIDADENOVA BUSINESS COMPLEX

Racional won the public bid for the 30-year concession under the BOT 
(Build, Operate and Transfer) scheme organized by the Rio de Janeiro City 
Administration, which resulted in the construction and further management 
of the RioCidadeNova Business Complex. The project involved building two 
corporate towers, a large underground garage and a convention center, besides 
the restoration of a listed historic building in Rio’s downtown area. 
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50%

R$ 34,1 R$ 34,1

50%

50%

50%

LOGISTICS PARKS

Centeranel Raposo 

The Centeranel Raposo Logistics Park, located in the western 
part of São Paulo, was completed by Racional in May 2011.  
This is a state-of-the-art facility that adds a new dimension to 
the concept of distribution center and provision of premium 
services designed to integrate supply chain activities of 
production and distribution companies.

The Centeranel Raposo already enjoys a significant position 
in the logistics market  and offers competitive advantages 
that add value to its clients’ operations such as proximity to 
the city center, space optimization, shared support services, 
and IT and communications infrastructure. The facility has 
become a benchmark for clients and competitors, and by 
year end 2011 virtually 100% of its area had been leased to 
small, medium and large sized companies.  

The Centeranel Raposo’s privileged location at the 
intersection of the Mario Covas Ringroad and Raposo 
Tavares Highway meets the demand for split cargo 
deliveries, thus allowing compliance with freight traffic 
restriction laws and delivery schedules.

The Centeranel Raposo is flexible enough to meet the 
needs of users requiring spaces from 1,500 sqm to 105,000 
sqm for their logistics operations. As well as ensuring 
various types of logistic support, the Centeranel Raposo is 
designed to provide a wide range of logistics solutions with 
the aim of improving operating costs, such as warehousing, 
inventory management, order management; material 
assembly and handling, reverse logistics, training, support 
and security software.

Furthermore, the project design includes Sustainability issues 
by integrating economic results with social responsibility 
and environmental conservation in compliance with the 
LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) 
certification standards.

Centeranel Viracopos 

Located in Indaiatuba, São Paulo State, near the expansion 
area of the Viracopos International Airport in Campinas, 
when ready the Viracopos Centeranel will enjoy the benefits 
gained from the design and management of the Centeranel 
Raposo Logistics Park project.

In a continuous improvement cycle, Racional Empreendimentos 
is applying its expertise in project design and management to 
build the Centeranel Viracopos Logistics Park.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2011, the EBITDA result for the Racional Empreendimentos 
business was on a par with the Racional Engenharia EBITDA.

Racional Empreendimentos

South Tower

Centeranel Raposo

2011 EBITDA
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

2011 EBITDA
(in millions of Brazilian Reais – R$)

Racional Engenharia

Convention Center

North Tower

33%

13%

16%

38%

R$ 11,4

R$ 4,6

R$ 5,3

R$ 12,8

OPERATIONAL AND 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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In 2011, Racional continued its Sustainability efforts begun in the previous year 
with the goal of aligning its positioning with Sustainability principles, therefore 
strengthening its activities through sustainable management practices in line with 
its corporate strategies.

The first practical outcome of this initiative was the preparation of a Strategic 
Sustainability Plan, which led to the publication of Racional’s Sustainability 
Statement: “Sustainability means being aware of our commitment to the future 
and do business today in a responsible and innovative manner by striking a balance 
between economic, social and environmental values”.

From this positioning, the following principles were identified to incorporate 
sustainable management into the Company’s daily routine:  

Building Life Cycle: seeks to reflect on how Racional influences all stages of the 
building life cycle – from project design and planning to the end of its useful life 
and not just limited to the construction itself. 

Supply Chain: involves participants of the supply chain, i.e. suppliers and clients, 
and identifies whether their performance is in line with Racional’s Sustainability 
principles. Furthermore, the Company encourages these participants to adopt 
sustainable construction practices. 

Social Networks: the Sustainability concept should underpin all stakeholders 
who are part of the same relationship network.

The preparation of the Strategic Sustainability Plan involved some management 
elements that are critical for the implementation of a Sustainability-based 
organizational culture – Knowledge Management, Process Management, and People 
and Leadership Development.

SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

From its positioning focused on economic, social and environmental aspects, 
three main perspectives driving Racional’s Sustainability efforts were laid out:

Economic: report financial, social and environmental data generated by the 
Company in a transparent manner. 

Social: contribute to the development of the Company’s employees and social 
network communities. 

Environmental: reduce environmental impacts generated by all the Company’s 
activities.

Once these guidelines were defined, they were disseminated among Racional’s 
employees, who underwent training on Sustainability.

As a result, two multi-task Work Groups were formed focused on the topics 
Society and Environment. These groups have met monthly since late 2010 to 
discuss improvement of existing initiatives and prepare Action Plans to ensure the 
implementation of the goals outlined in the Sustainability Statement.

Described below are the main initiatives and programs by stakeholder group 
developed by Racional during 2011 in line with the Strategic Sustainability 
Plan guidelines:

eMPLoYeeS 
Racional’s relationship with its employees is governed by the Company’s interest 
in contributing to the professional development of its staff through training 
programs focused on the skills required by the business and enhancement of 
existing talent.

Through its Corporate Education Program, Racional seeks to train and develop 
people by means of continuous learning actions to create an environment of 
employee collaboration, high performance and engagement. The program 
was structured from a detailed study of major collective gaps identified in the 
Performance Evaluation Program through analysis of the Company’s strategic 
goals and interviews conducted with a large number of employees.

The premises of the Corporate Education Program include the active participation 
of leaders, who are co-responsible for the team development process, and the 
importance of practice, which occurs in the employees’ daily routine, thus helping 
in their development process. 

Leadership Development Program 

Geared to employees holding leadership positions, the Leadership Development 
Program addresses topics taking into account the particularity of each group 
(Executive Leadership, Operational Leadership, and Administrative Leadership 
groups) and their needs to promote Racional leadership model. The workshops 
are devised so as to include behavioral aspects.

In 2011, the program was based on five essential attitudes: engagement, people 
growth, systemic view, result oriented, and innovation. Twelve workshops 
were offered with participation of 85 employees. Furthermore, 12 coaching 
sessions were conducted to each member of the Board of Directors (altogether 
72 sessions) and one coaching session to each member of the Executive Group 
(altogether 11 sessions). 
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Assessment

To better understand the technical and behavioral skills of its employees, 
in 2011 Racional created a Technical and Behavioral Assessment 
methodology to evaluate these traits among employees.

During the year, the Technical and Behavioral Assessment was 
conducted with the Executive Group and, for 2012, it is expected to be 
extended to Management and Coordination levels.

The application of this methodology will help in the management of 
human capital and development of career tracks, allowing the Company 
to learn about and identify the potential of those employees and propose 
the necessary changes to yield the best results.

Construction Foreman Training Course

Faced with increasingly acute shortage of skilled labor in the market and 
to promote the development of its employees, Racional spearheaded the 
creation of the Construction Foreman Training Course.

Geared to assistant foremen and to employees newly promoted to 
the foreman position, the course was developed in partnership with 
the Industrial Apprenticeship Program (Senai), lasts 12 months and 
is held bimonthly on Saturdays in classrooms set up at Racional’s 
construction sites.  

The content taught to participants is customized so as to meet the 
Company’s needs and includes topics such as: Plan Reading and 
Interpretation, Workplace Safety, Environment and Occupational Health, 
People Growth and Leadership, among others.

The first group started in May 2011 and the course was attended by 20 
employees.

Trainee Program

For more than 20 years, Racional has invested in training and skill 
building of university students. Through the Trainee Program, the 
Company seeks to identify, attract and empower young people to 
work in its operations. Today, some of these young talents hold 
executive positions.

The Trainee Program lasts one year and, during this period, participants 
work in different groups so that they can have an overview of the whole 
operation and understand its complexity and interdependence.

To join the Program, applicants must be Civil Engineering graduates, 
have up to three years’ experience in the area, knowledge of languages 
and computer skills, among other skills.

In 2011, out of the 2,000 applicants who enrolled in the Program, five 
were selected and joined the 2012 Racional Trainee Program. 

SUPPLIeRS
Racional seeks to build transparent and trusting relationships with its supplier 
base, which is largely made up of contractors and equipment and material 
suppliers.

This process begins upon registration of the supplier in the Company’s 
database. Suppliers must comply with a series of legal and administrative 
requirements. Racional also ensures that suppliers’ practices are in line with 
the Company’s Sustainability guidelines including compliance with laws and 
regulations, respect for the rights of workers, respect for the environment, 
and adoption of responsible safety practices, among other aspects.

The supplier agreements signed with the Company contain clauses related 
to compliance with safety standards and environmental conditions in the 
civil construction industry. To ensure this, all construction projects built by 
Racional undergo a monthly external audit by an independent team of auditors 
who attests to the safety conditions at the jobsite, inspects documents of 
suppliers and their subcontractors, and check the accommodation conditions 
provided to workers by contractors.  

Furthermore, Racional has put in place a Suppliers’ Assessment Program with 
the goal of maintaining the quality of contract suppliers through an ongoing 
review of the work carried out at the jobsite. Four items are assessed under 
the Program: Administration, Workplace Safety, Production and Supplies.

On completion of each construction project, these items are evaluated by 
representatives of each respective area and the information collected is 
validated and approved by the construction coordinator and manager and 
sent to Racional’s Head Office for update of the existing suppliers database.  

SoCIeTY
One of the guidelines that governs Racional’s relationship with society is 
the way the Company contributes to sustainable development and social 
wellbeing. Based on this principle, in 2011 Racional remained focused on 
structuring sustainable actions that convey its corporate identity centered 
around two major themes: Quality of Life and Institutional Programs.

Made up by 24 employees from several Company groups, hierarchical levels 
and locations (construction sites, Head Office and Real Estate Portfolio), the 
Society Work Group reassessed existing initiatives and developed new ones 
in a total of 42 strategic planned actions under those two themes. During the 
year, some initiatives were started under a pilot project at several sites and 
at the Head Office.
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QUALITY OF LIFE

Among the various quality of life related initiatives implemented by Racional during 
2011, the highlights are:

1. Work Routine and Work Conditions

• Free part-time on employee’s birthday month.

• Improvement of leisure facilities, i.e. installation of hammocks, space for reading 
containing books, newspapers and magazines, TV, DVDs, game tables and 
computers with internet access.

• Improvement of locker rooms.

2. Culture and Leisure

• Swap Fair – Held by Racional in its Head Office, a place to stimulate the exchange 
of used books, CDs, DVDs and LPs among employees.

• Book Fair held at the leisure area of construction sites.

3. Education and Professionalization 

• Educational program with monthly lectures on technical topics and subjects 
related to Workplace Safety, Environment and Health. 

4. Sports and Health 

• Running group at the Head Office.

• Soccer tournaments between construction teams working in the same city.

INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMS 

For many years, Racional has conducted four institutional programs focused on 
education and relationship with society. In 2011, these programs were reviewed by 
the Society Work Group, who suggested improvements and new actions that were 
implemented during the year. 

1. Learning is Growth Program

With a focus on building citizenship awareness and self-esteem, the Educar é Crescer 
(“Learning is Growth”) Program was first implemented by Racional in 1987 to teach 
reading and writing skills to site employees and service providers. 

Since its inception, the Learning is Growth literacy courses have trained more than 
3,500 employees. The Program follows the educational guidelines set forth by the 
Brazilian Ministry of Education. The participants’ social integration is further enhanced 
by extracurricular activities, i.e., cultural and recreational field trips.

Improvements implemented in 2011:
• Training courses for jobsite workers.
• Art workshops in partnership with the NGO Mestres da Obra.
• Invitation to participate in cultural trips extended to workers’ families.

2. All in the Family Program

In order to strengthen its bond with its workers’ families, Racional promotes an 
informal event at every new construction project for site workers and their families to 
socialize. The Tudo em Família (“All in the Family”) Program is a day of recreational 
activities taking place on the construction site, when workers have the opportunity to 
show their families what they do and share the challenges of their daily routine. 

Improvements implemented in 2011:
• Implementation of the Program at the Head Office.
• Storytelling and presentation of stage plays as part of educational and 
recreational activities.

3. Future Professionals Program

Since 2000, Racional has welcomed undergraduate students attending Civil Engineering 
and Architecture courses to participate in its Futuros Profissionais (“Future Professionals”) 
Program. The Program is an opportunity to disseminate Racional’s construction knowledge 
and expertise among university students.  

Improvements implemented in 2011:
• Networking with target universities and definition of topics of common interest to 
promote lectures and other actions.
• A more active participation in job fairs and university events.

4. Good Neighbor Policy Program

Racional is also concerned about the impact of its developments on the communities 
living around its construction sites. Created in 2000, the Good Neighbor Policy Program 
aims to establish a dialogue between local residents and the Company. At the start of a 
new construction project, Racional welcomes neighbors to the proposed development for 
breakfast on site in order to share information on the construction and introduce the jobsite 
team. Through the Good Neighbor Policy Program, Racional opens a communication channel 
with its neighbors to emphasize the importance of clear communication and the Company’s 
commitment to performing quality work with least possible impact on the local neighborhood.

Improvements implemented in 2011:
• Evaluation of other local community development opportunities during the construction period.
• Allocation of a quota for local community members to attend the courses offered by the 
Company (literacy, digital inclusion and training courses).

enVIRonMenT
To ensure business growth while minimizing the environmental impact from its construction 
projects, Racional began a review of its Environmental Management Program. This process 
involved the diagnosis of current environmental practices and, subsequently, the review of 
those actions, as well as the design of new initiatives from existing good market practices.

All the proposals were discussed and analyzed by 27 members of the Environment Work Group 
with the purpose of expanding and reaffirming Racional’s commitment to the environmental 
management of its activities.

Through monthly meetings, new actions were proposed around 11 topics: Waste, Demolition, 
Contaminated Land, Vegetation Suppression, Erosion and Sediment, Air Quality, Noise, Water 
and Energy, Supplies, Budget Planning, and Construction Site Project.

During the year, some of those actions were implemented under pilot phase in three 
construction projects: 

Tietê Plaza Shopping Mall - São Paulo
• Wheel-washing system with water reuse.
• Sustainable construction site: taps and showers with flow reducers, paint with low levels 
of volatile organic compounds (VOCs), FSC certified wood and Procel certified equipment. 

Village Mall - Rio de Janeiro
• Use of solar energy for water heating in locker rooms.

Parque das Bandeiras Shopping Mall  - Campinas - São Paulo State
• Environmental Education initiative with the planting of trees by students of two local 
public schools.

SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE
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ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 3 34,544 30,804
Trade accounts receivable 4 45,458 58,627
Recoverable taxes  848 1,284
Advances to suppliers   1,688 1,353
Trade receivables from related parties 6 241  936
Other receivables 5 429  4,978
Other receivables    460  312

Total current assets  83,668  98,294
    
NONCURRENT ASSETS    
Escrow deposits     2,288   1,888
Deferred income tax and social contribution  19 2,485 2,377
Investments 7 85  114,956
Property, plant and equipment 8 2,962   2,115
Intangible assets 9 10,489 1,137

Total noncurrent assets  18,309  122,473 
 

      
TOTAL ASSETS  101,977  220,767

As at december 31, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Borrowings and financing  12 504 -
Trade accounts payable   6,717 7,334 
Deposits and retentions   5,639 4,811
Advances from customers 10 20,360  27,159 
Payroll and related taxes   9,972 8,642 
Taxes payable  11 3,097 2,855 
Income tax and social contribution   3,219   2,059
Provision for construction warranty 13 1,880  1,550 
Other payables 14 1,525   15,658 

Total current liabilities  52,913 70,068	
	
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES   
Borrowings and financing  12 5,463 - 
Taxes payable 11 169   506
Provision for tax, civil and labor contingencies 15 2,353 2,571 
Allowance for investment losses 7 -  4,578 

Total noncurrent liabilities  7,985  7,655	
	
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY   
Capital  16.a) 21,615 61,779
Legal reserve  - 643
Revaluation reserve 16.b) - 54,966
Retained earnings  16.e) 19,464  25,656
 
Total shareholders’ equity  41,079 143,044
	 	
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  101,977   220,767

BALAnCe SHeeTS

Note 12/31/2011 12/31/2010 Note 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

RACIONAL ENGENhARIA
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NET REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 17 283,925 293,280 
  
COST OF SERVICES 18.a) (221,874) (232,037)
  
GROSS PROFIT  62,051  61,243 
  
OPERATING (EXPENSES) INCOME   
Administrative and selling expenses 18.b) (27,905)  (28,276)
Depreciation and amortization  (1,291)  (621)
Equity in subsidiaries 7 4,578  5,272
Provision for losses on investment in subsidiaries 7 1,496   (1,665)
Other (expenses) income  (75) 28  
    
OPERATING INCOME BEFORE FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES)  38,854   35,981  
  
FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES)   
 
Financial income  20 2,361   3,898 
Financial expenses  20 (2,027)  (2,034) 
    
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAX     
AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION  39,188   37,845  
 
INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
   
Current 19 (10,304)  (11,351)
Deferred 19 108   2,377 

NET INCOME   28,992  28,871
 
There is no other comprehensive income for the year or prior years.

The	accompanying	notes	are	an	integral	part	of	these	financial	statements.

BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009  36,888  643 54,966 25,030  117,527 
       
 
Capital increase  24,891 - - - 24,891
Dividends paid   - - -  (25,026)  (25,026)
Net income for the year  -  - - 28,871  28,871 
Interest on capital  -  -  - (3,219)  (3,219) 
          
 
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010  61,779 643 54,966  28,875 143,044 
       
  
Capital increase 16.a) 20,609  - - -  20,609 
Dividends paid  16.c) -  - -  (20,948) (20,948)
Capital increase through merger of assets 1.(a) 6,655 - - -  6,655 
Partial spin-off - Racional Empreendimentos Ltda. 1.(b) (67,428) (643) (54,966) (11,300) (134,337)
Net income for the year  - - - 28,992 28,992
Interest on capital 16.d) - - - (2,936) (2,936)

BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011  21,615  - - 22,683  41,079

   Legal Revaluation Retained
 Note Capital reserve reserve earnings Total 

InCoMe
STATeMenTS

STATeMenTS oF CHAnGeS
In eQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Note 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

For the years ended december 31, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

For the years ended december 31, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

RACIONAL ENGENhARIA
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year 28,992  28,871 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities:   
 Depreciation and amortization 1,291 621 
 Deferred income tax and social contribution  (108) (2,377)
 Financial expense on borrowings, financing and payments in installments 678 429 
 Discounts granted 926  1,194 
 Recognition of provision for construction warranty 330  150 
 (Reversal of) reserve for tax, civil and labor contingencies (218)  1,289 
 Allowance for losses in subsidiaries (1,496) 1,665 
 Equity in subsidiaries (4,578) (5,272)

  25,817 26,570
 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
 Trade accounts receivable 12,120 (32,746)
 Receivables from related parties 695 7,235 
 Recoverable taxes - (595)
 Advances to suppliers  (335) 84 
 Other credits  4,549 (4,932)
 Other receivables  (25) (316)
 Escrow deposits (400)  (28) 
  
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
 Trade accounts payable  (617)  2,784 
 Deposits and retentions  828  (498)
 Advances from customers (6,799) 14,799 
 Payroll and related taxes  1,330 382 
 Taxes payable  885  925 
 Income tax and social contribution  1,160  996 
 Other payables  (14,133) 14,776

 Payables to related parties - (278)

Net cash provided by operating activities 25,075  29,158

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (4,835)  (1,706)
Capital increases in subsidiaries  (20,668)  (24,951)
Dividends received 2,701 - 
Other investments (3) -

Net cash used in investing activities (22,805)  (26,657)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Payment of tax installments (722) (729)
Borrowings  5,467 - 
Capital increase 20,609   24,891 
Dividends paid  (20,948)  (25,026)
Payment of interest on capital (2,936)  (3,219)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,470   (4,083)  
 
  
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, NET 3,740 (1,582)

 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 30,804 32,386 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 34,544 30,804 
     
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, NET 3,740   (1,582)

STATeMenTS 
oF CASH FLoWS

12/31/2011 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

For the years ended december 31, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

RACIONAL ENGENhARIA
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noTeS To THe FInAnCIAL STATeMenTS

RACIONAL ENGENhARIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended december 31, 2011
(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian reais - R$, unless otherwise stated)

1. OPERATIONS

Racional Engenharia Ltda. (the “Company”) is engaged in the management and performance of cons-
truction works, operating mainly as a construction company. 
Until November 30, 2011, the Company held equity interests in CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda., 
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda., Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda., Centeranel 3 Logística e Participa-
ções Ltda., CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda., CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de 
Bens Ltda., Consórcio MCT and Consórcio CEDAE. As a result of the corporate restructuring mentio-
ned below, the Company has no investments in subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011.

Corporate restructuring
On November 30, 2011, the Company carried out a corporate restructuring with the purpose of making 
the group ready, as to both legal and accounting aspects, for new projects, segregating engineering 
and construction activities from the real estate business and new projects involving the development 
of structured transactions and the creation of strategic portfolios. Furthermore, the corporate restruc-
turing will aim at enhancing corporate governance standards. The following steps were taken:

(a) Merger of the spun-off net assets of the then parent company Racicorp Comércio e Participações 
Ltda. (“Racicorp”). The merged net assets, based on a report prepared by independent experts, are 
represented by the goodwill of R$6,655 recognized by Racicorp upon the acquisition of Company’s 
shares in prior years, which is based on expected future earnings. Racicorp is a going concern.

(b) Partial spin-off of the Company’s net assets and merger thereof by related company Racional 
Empreendimentos Ltda. (“Racional Empreendimentos”). The merged net assets, based on a report 
prepared by independent experts, amount to R$134,337 and are composed as follows:

Investments:  
CCN (4,206)
Centeranel 1 7,807
Centeranel 2 1,614
Centeranel 3 114,301
CCN Administração 12,641
CCN Torre Sul 2,171
PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários II Ltda.            9

  
  134,337 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Declaration of conformity
The financial statements have been prepared and are presented in conformity with accounting 
practices adopted in Brazil and the provisions of Corporate Law, which include the technical 
pronouncements, instructions and interpretations issued by the Accounting Pronouncements 
Committee (CPC).  

2.2  Basis of presentation
The financial statements have been prepared based on historical cost, unless otherwise stated. The 
historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration paid in exchange for assets.

2.2.1 Financial assets
They may be classified in the following specific categories: financial assets measured at fair value 
trough profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, available-for-sale financial assets, and loans 
and receivables. Such classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 
is determined upon initial recognition.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had financial assets classified under financial 
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables
Include nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market Financial assets classified by the Company under loans and receivables consist 
basically of trade accounts receivable and other receivables and escrow deposits. These assets 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. 
Interest revenue is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term 
receivables when the recognition of interest is immaterial.

In order to be classified as cash and cash equivalents, the Company considers and evaluates 
instruments whose balances do not significantly differ from their fair values, redeemable within 
90 days, highly liquid or convertible at a known cash amount, and subject to immaterial change in 
value, which are recorded at cost plus income earned through the balance sheet dates, which do 
not exceed their fair or realization value.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date. They are considered 
impaired when there is evidence that one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of 
the financial asset had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investment.
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2.2.2 Financial liabilities
The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ financial liabilities consist primarily of trade accounts payable and borrowings 
and financing. They are stated at contract amounts plus related charges, including interest, inflation adjustment 
or exchange rate change. When applicable, they are stated at fair value, less transaction costs incurred, and 
subsequently measured at amortized cost under the effective interest rate method.

2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Stated at cost, less depreciation and amortization and, when applicable, allowance for impairment losses. 
Depreciation and amortization are calculated under the straight-line method, using rates that take into account 
the estimated useful lives of the assets and rights. Leases of property, plant and equipment are recognized in 
this group, as a contra entry to ‘Borrowings and financing’, and are depreciated over the economic useful lives 
of the leased assets. Financial charges on financing incurred over the construction period were capitalized.

2.2.4  Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the amount received or receivable, less estimated commercial 
discounts and/or bonuses granted. 

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs 
are recognized as revenue and expenses respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of costs incurred to total estimated 
contract costs, except when there is evidence that another method represents better the stage of completion 
of the service. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that it is 
probable that they are capable of being reliably measured and that their collection is probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, its revenue is recognized only to 
the extent of contract costs incurred that will probably be recovered. The costs of each contract are recognized 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss shall be 
recognized as an expense immediately. 
 
The amounts received before the completion of the works are recognized in the balance sheet as liabilities, 
in line item ‘Advances from customers’. The amounts invoiced for work performed but not yet paid by the 
customer are recognized in the balance sheet as assets, in line item ‘Trade accounts receivable’.

2.2.5 Impairment of assets
At the end of each year, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets with 
finite useful lives to determine if there are any indications that the assets might be impaired. If there is any 
such indication, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated with the purpose of measuring the amount 
of such loss, if any.

In accordance with technical pronouncement CPC 01 Impairment of Assets, the Company tested its property, 
plant and equipment for impairment. Based on these tests, no assets requiring an impairment allowance 
were identified.

2.2.6 Present value adjustment
Pursuant to technical pronouncement CPC 12 Discount to Present Value, the Company evaluated the long-term 
monetary assets and liabilities subject to discount to present value, and material short-term monetary assets 
and liabilities whose impact is considered material in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. As 
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, no discount to present value was recorded due to its immateriality.

2.2.7 Investments in subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, in which the parent owns, directly or 
through other subsidiaries, shareholder rights that entitle it, on a permanent basis, to prevail in corporate decisions and 
grant it the power to elect the majority of the officers. Prevalence in corporate decision-making and the power to elect the 
majority of the officers, on a permanent basis, presumably occur when the investor owns more than 50% of the voting 
capital in other entity. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method.

2.2.8 Taxes payable

Current taxes
The provision for income tax and social contribution is based on the taxable income for the year. Taxable profit differs 
from the income shown in the statement of income because it excludes taxable or deductible income or expenses for 
other years, in addition to permanently excluding non-taxable or non-deductible items.

Deferred taxes
Deferred assets are recognized on taxable temporary differences. The recoverability of the deferred tax asset balance is 
reviewed at the balance sheet date and, when it is no longer probable that future taxable income will be available to allow 
the recovery of all or part of assets, the asset balance is adjusted based on the expected recoverable amount. Current 
and deferred taxes are recognized in income (expenses).

2.2.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, when a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, and its settlement is probable.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the end 
of each reporting period, considering risks and uncertainties related to the obligation.

The provisions for expected warranty costs related to construction works are recognized based on Management’s best 
estimate of the expenses required to settle the obligation.

2.2.10 Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting practices adopted in Brazil requires Management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  The main estimates used by the Company’s management in the 
preparation of the financial statements refer to the determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts, the useful lives 
used in the depreciation of property, plant and equipment items, the periods and amounts for realization of property, plant 
and assets, and the reserves for contingencies and warranties.

2.2.11 Consolidation
The Company, in accordance with the provisions of paragraphs 9 and 10 of technical pronouncement CPC 36 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, is not presenting its consolidated statements because its parent 
company Racional Participações is ultimately disclosing its consolidated financial statements for the years ended 
December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance is broken down as follows:

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Cash 49 61
Banks 98 408
Short-term investments:  
Banco Santander (a) 46 -
Banco Votorantim - CDB (a) 37 21,036
Banco Bradesco - repurchase agreement - CDB (a) 3,054 -
Banco Itaú - Invest Fix (c) 3,186 4,885
Banco Votorantim - Vintage Fund (b) - 4,414
Banco Itaú - CDB (a) 28,074           -

  34,544 30,804

(a) Short-term investments yield average interest of 101% of the interbank deposit rate (CDI).
(b) In 2010, represented by a balanced fund that sought to obtain yields above CDI.
(c) Automatic short-term investment of amounts in current account yielding average daily interest rates of 20% of CDI.

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Trade accounts receivable 31,866 40,779
Unbilled services 13,592 17,848

  45,458 58,627

The aging list of trade accounts receivable as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Current 28,262 39,531
Past-due:  
Up to 30 days 1,248 1,248
From 31 to 60 days 518 -
From 61 to 90 days 948 -
From 91 to 120 days 681 -
Above 120 days      209           -

    31,866 40,779 
 
The Company recognizes an allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables past-due for more than 180 days, based on its 
historical experience. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 there is no balance of allowance for doubtful accounts.
As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a concentration of trade accounts receivable corresponding to 52% of the total 
billed amounts:

Client 12/31/2011 % of total

VIVO S.A. 10,796 24
Hospital Alemão Osvaldo Cruz 7,481  16
Multiplan Empreendimentos Imobiliários S.A. 5,161 11
Other clients 22,020   49

  45,458 100
 
Management believes that the Company is not exposed to concentration of credit risk and that the concentration in trade 
accounts receivable was due to the progress of the work in the month of December 2011, the realization of which took place in 
a subsequent period.

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Consórcio MCT - 4,678
Other receivables 429    300

  429 4,978
       
Consórcio MCT is a joint venture established to build and implement, under a turn-key contract, a plant for the Ministry of Science 
and Technology (“MCT”) in the State of Rio Grande do Sul.

6. INTERCOMPANY RECEIVABLES

The balances with related parties are as follows:

Current assets 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Due from related parties:  
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. - 8
CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. 123 36
Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. 81 789
CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. 18 33
CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. 17 26
Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. 2 13
Other      -   31

  241 936

The Company leases the building where the head office is located, which is owned by related company Racicorp. As of December 
31, 2011, the Company recorded lease expenses totaling R$1,163 (R$1,066 as of December 31, 2010), recorded as ‘Administrative 
and selling expenses’.  

Intercompany loans bear no financial charges.

7. INVESTMENTS AND ALLOWANCE FOR INVESTMENT LOSSES

Represented by:

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Investments in subsidiaries:  
Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. (*) - 95,085
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. (*) - 7,787
CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. (*) - 10,413
Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. (*)  - 1,589
Other 85          82

  85 114,956
    
Allowance for investment losses  
CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda, (*) - 4,412
CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda, (*)    -        166

     -     4,578

(*) As mentioned in note 1, on November 30, 2011, the Company performed a partial spin-off to related company Racional 
Empreendimentos. 
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As of December 31, 2010, investments and the allowance for investment losses were as follows:

Common
shares held

(in thousands)
ownership

interest - %
Shareholders’
equity (deficit)

Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. (a) 45,452 99,99 95,085
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. 3,669 99,99 7,787
CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. (b) 6 99,97 10,413
Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. 783 99,99 1,589
CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. (c) 6 99,97 (166)
CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. (d) 2,701 99,99 (4,412)

(a) Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. is engaged in the purchase and sale of own and third-party real estate and the 
management of own and third-party assets, whether directly or through other companies, consortiums, joint ventures and other 
forms of association of which it may now or in the future take part, in the logistics services industry. It started its activities in 2010.

(b) CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. is engaged in the business operation, management and lease of own and third-
party assets or assets held under concession agreements. It started its activities in 2009.

(c) CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. is engaged in the business operation, management and lease of own 
and third-party assets or assets held under concession agreements. It started its activities in 2010.

(d) CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. is engaged in the operation of the Convention Center of the city of Rio de Janeiro. It 
started its activities in 2007.

Changes in investments in the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Investments

Allowance
for investment

      losses

Balances as of December 31, 2009 84,729 (2,913)
    
Capital increase in subsidiaries 24,950 -
Equity in subsidiaries 5,272 -
Other investments 5 -
Provision for losses on investment in subsidiaries - (1,665)
                          
Balances as of December 31, 2010 114,956 (4,578)
    
Capital increase in subsidiaries 20,668 -
Dividends received from subsidiaries (2,701) -
Equity in subsidiaries 1,496 4,578
Partial spin-off to Racional Empreendimentos (*) (134,337) -
Other investments 3 -

Balances as of December 31, 2011          85         -

(*) (See note 1.) 

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Consist of:
12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Annual
depreciation

 rate - %   Cost

Accumulated
depreciation/
 amortization net net

Machinery and equipment 10 985 (505) 480 457
Furniture and fixtures 10 341 (104) 237 275
IT equipment 20 3,197 (1,563) 1,634 781
Vehicles 20 29 (26) 3 9
Leasehold improvements 10 1,090   (482)    608    593  
   5,642 (2,680) 2,962 2,115
 

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Cost
Depreciation and

amortization net

Balances as of December 31, 2009 3,388 (1,515) 1,873
Additions in the year    737   (495)    242
Balances as of December 31, 2010 4,125 (2,010) 2,115
Additions in the year 1,517   (670)    847

Balances as of December 31, 2011 5,642 (2,680) 2,962

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Consist of:
12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Annual
amortization

  rate - %  Cost
Accumulated
 amortization net net

Goodwill on acquisition of shares (*) - 8,873 (2,218) 6,655 -
Software 20   4,987 (1,153)   3,834 1,137

   13,860 (3,371) 10,489 1,137

(*) On September 9, 2007, Racicorp - former parent company of the Company - acquired 10% of the Company’s shares, previously 
held by individuals. This transaction generated goodwill of R$8,873 based on expected future earnings. From years starting on 
or after January 1, 2009, goodwill was no longer amortized systematically based on expected future earnings and instead it was 
tested for impairment, as required by technical pronouncement CPC 01. Until December 31, 2008, the Company amortized the 
goodwill on a straight-line basis over 5 years, in the amount of R$2,218. On November 30, 2011, Racicorp spun off all the goodwill 
to the Company, according to the spin-off transaction referred to in note 1.

Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

  Cost Amortization Net

Balances as of December 31, 2009 700 (406) 294
Additions 969 - 969
Amortization          -   (126)    (126)
Balances as of December 31, 2010 1,669 (532) 1,137
Additions 3,318 - 3,318
Additions through merger transaction (note 1) 8,873 (2,218) 6,655
Amortization          -   (621)    (621)

Balances as of December 31, 2011 13,860 (3,371) 10,489
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10. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Represent amounts advanced by customers for construction in progress, to be recorded under the percentage-of-
completion method.

11. TAXES PAYABLE
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010
Current:  
Tax on revenue (COFINS) 645 972
Tax on revenue (PIS) 178 232
Service tax (ISS) 829 409
Withholding income tax (IRRF) 1,016 831
COFINS - PAES (tax debt refinancing program) 309 338
Other    120      73

  3,097 2,855
Noncurrent-
COFINS - PAES     169    506

In 2003, the Company joined the PAES, created by Law 10684, and declared all its COFINS debts related to the increase in the 
tax rate from 2% to 3%, beginning 1999, set forth by Law 9718/98. The more advantageous conditions for the amortization of 
the debt, including extension of the payment term and change of adjustment index (from SELIC [Central Bank overnight rate] to 
TJLP [Long-Term Interest Rate]), were determining factors for joining the program.

12. BORROWINGS AND FINANCING
    12/31/2011

National Bank for Economic and Social Development (BNDES)    5,967

Current   504
Noncurrent   5,463
   
On March 24, 2011, the Company entered into a loan agreement with BNDES through financing agent Banco Itaú BBA S.A. for 
the purpose of software development and customization and office area expansion. The loans were divided into: (a) subloan A, in 
the amount of R$4,421; (b) subloan B, in the amount of R$1,105; and (c) subloan C, in the amount of R$1,842, gross of banking 
commissions. Subloans D, E and F, in the amount of R$1,136, are due to be released in 2012. The debt is subject to average 
annual interest of 4.7% plus TJLP. Said loan has an 18-month grace period for principal and interest payment. The payment 
schedule establishes repayment of principal plus inflation adjustment in 42 monthly installments. 

In case of failure to demonstrate the physical or financial execution of the project, the maturity of the debt shall be accelerated 
and a fine of 50% on the total amount of funds released and not demonstrated will be imposed. Assets owned by Banco Itaú BBA 
S.A. were pledged as collateral, and the Company is responsible for obtaining and keeping insurance for such assets.

13. PROVISION FOR CONSTRUCTION WARRANTY

Provisions are calculated based on the analysis of the costs incurred compared to total costs of construction works with terminated 
warranty period. Thus, the Company defined the percentages for each industry and segment where it operates, applied to 
completed works, plus estimated future expenses on repairs and maintenance.

14. OTHER TRADE PAYABLES

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Consórcio CEDAE - (a)  169 14,955
Consórcio MCT - (b)  948 -
Other     408      703

   1,525 15,658
    
(a) Consórcio CEDAE is a joint venture established to build and implement, under a turn-key contract, a property for Caixa 
Econômica Federal.
 

The Company recorded in income for 2011 and 2010 the following amounts related to this joint venture:

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Revenue from services  26,587 13,393
Taxes on billings  (987) (1,451)
Cost of services  (19,445) (10,764)
Financial income (expenses)         93      184  
     6,248    1,362 
    
The balance as of December 31, 2011 represents amounts received in advance in connection with services to be performed.

(b) Consórcio MCT is a joint venture established to build and implement, under a turn-key contract, a plant for the MCT in 
the State of Rio Grande do Sul. The Company recorded in income for 2011 and 2010 the following amounts related to this 
joint venture:
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010  
Revenue from services  3,152 22,823
Taxes on billings  (507) (943)
Cost of services  (7,509) (12,629)
Financial income (expenses)     189        67  
   (4,675)   9,318 
   
 
15. RESERVE FOR TAX, CIVIL AND LABOR CONTINGENCIES AND ESCROW DEPOSITS

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010  
Labor  1,106 1,202
Civil  1,247 1,182
Tax          -    187  
   2,353 2,571

A reserve is recognized for all matters under litigation, in an amount considered sufficient to cover probable losses, based on an 
assessment made by management and outside legal counsel. 

The Company recognizes a reserve for contingencies for lawsuits, for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is assessed 
as probable.

Changes in the reserve for tax, civil and labor contingencies for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Balances at beginning of year  2,571 1,282
Recognition of reserves  - 1,289
Reversal of reserves    (218)         -

Balances at end of year  2,353  2,571
     
The Company made an escrow deposit in the amount of R$1,827 on June 23, 2008 which stayed the collection of taxes due 
related to an administrative proceeding claiming an alleged PIS debt related to taxable events occurred from January 1997 to 
September 1998. The legal counsel considers the likelihood of a favorable outcome to the Company as possible, and for this 
reason no reserve for contingencies was recognized as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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16. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

a. Capital
Capital as of December 31, 2011 of R$21,616 is represented by 21,616,756 shares with par value of R$1.00 each. Racional 
Participações Ltda. holds 99% of the capital.

On April 19, 2010, the shareholders approved a capital increase of R$15,141, corresponding to 15,141,000 shares with par 
value of R$1.00 each.

On December 06, 2010, the shareholders approved a capital increase of R$9,750, corresponding to 9,750,000 shares with 
par value of R$1.00 each.

On June 20, 2011, the shareholders approved a capital increase of R$18,609, corresponding to 18,609,000 shares with par 
value of R$1.00 each.

On August 15, 2011, the shareholders approved a capital increase of R$2,000, corresponding to 2,000,000 shares with par 
value of R$1.00 each.

As mentioned in note 1, on November 30, 2011, the transaction involving the assignment of spun-off net assets to related 
company Racional Empreendimentos gave rise to a capital reduction of R$67,428 through the cancellation of 67,428,469 
shares with par value of R$1.00 each.

b. Revaluation
On September 20, 2007, subsidiaries Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda., Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. and Centeranel 3 
Logística e Participações Ltda. revalued their land and recognized a revaluation reserve totaling R$54,966. As mentioned in 
note 1, on November 30, 2011, the transaction involving the assignment of spun-off net assets to related company Racional 
Empreendimentos gave rise to a reduction in the revaluation reserve of R$54,966.  

c. Dividends
The Company distributed dividends totaling R$20,948 as approved by Annual Shareholders’ Meetings held in 2011.

d. Interest on capital
Under Law 9249/95, in 2011, and 2010 the Company recorded interest on capital in the amount of R$2,936 and R$3,219, 
respectively, based on the long-term interest rate (TJLP). 

For purposes of disclosure and conformity with accounting practices, financial expenses relating to the interest calculated 
thereon, totaling R$2,936 as of December 31, 2011 (R$3,219 as of December 31, 2010), were transferred from ‘Financial 
expenses’ in the statement of income to ‘Retained earnings’ in the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity.

e. Retained earnings
The allocation of net income for the year will be decided in the next shareholders’ meeting

17. NET REVENUE FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Gross revenue  301,905 312,206
(-) Taxes   (17,980)  (18,926)

Net revenue  283,925  293,280 
   
 
18. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE OF COSTS AND EXPENSES  RECOGNIZED IN THE STATEMENT OF INCOME

a. Cost of services
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Materials and services  115,723 140,437
Personnel  67,816 52,891
Utilities and services  25,003 25,131
Occupancy    13,332   13,578

   221,874 232,037

b. Administrative and selling expenses

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Personnel  19,314 14,277
General expenses  5,932 10,295
Occupancy  1,839 1,611
(Reversal of) addition to reserve for contingencies  (218) 1,289
Utilities and services  891 726
Tax expenses        147        78

   27,905 28,276
    
    

19. INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

Current
The Company adopts the taxable income regime, and the debits in the statements of income of R$10,304 (R$11,351 in 2010) 
refer to expenses on the taxes, adjusted for additions, according to the reconciliation below:

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Reconciliation of income tax and social contribution at effective rate:  
Income before income tax and social contribution  39,188 37,845
Statutory rate (%)      34%     34%
Income tax and social contribution at statutory rate  (13,324) (12,867)
Adjustments:    

Reduction for interest on capital payment  998 1,094
Equity in subsidiaries  2,065 1,226
Other deductions, net         65   1,573

Income tax and social contribution charged to income  10,196   8,974  
  

Deferred

   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Temporary additions:  
Provision for tax, civil and labor risks  2,353 2,571
Accrued warranties  1,880 1,550
Profit sharing  2,950 2,437
Reserve for payment of INSS (social security contribution) - FAP (Accident Prevention Factor)    127    431
Total temporary additions  7,310 6,989
Statutory rate (%)    34%   34%
Deferred income tax and social contribution   2,485 2,377

Noncurrent assets  2,485 2,377
Net income  108 2,377

   

 
20. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Financial income:  
Income from short-term investments  2,193 3,805
Interest receivable     168      93
   2,361  3,898 

Financial expenses:  
Discounts granted  (926) (1,194)
Interest payable  (680) (428)
Banking expenses    (421)   (412)

  (2,027) (2,034)
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21. OFFICER COMPENSATION
In the year ended December 31, 2011, management was granted short-term benefits (wages, salaries and social security 
contributions, profit sharing, healthcare, housing, free or company-subsidized products or services) amounting to R$3,304 (R$2,911 
as of December 31, 2010), represented as ‘Personnel expenses’.

No amount was paid as: (a) post-employment benefits (pension, other retirement benefits, post-employment life insurance and 
post-employment health care plan); (b) long-term benefits (leave of absence for length of service or other leaves, retirement or other 
benefits for length of service or disability); (c) termination benefits; and (d) share-based compensation.

22. PROFIT SHARING
In the year ended December 31, 2011, management decided to accrue profit sharing totaling R$2,950 (R$2,437 as of December 31, 2010), 
accounted for as ‘Selling and administrative expenses’.

23. INSURANCE
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s assets are insured against fire, theft, collision and sundry risks. The policy is 
in force until November 10, 2012, and the maximum indemnity amounts are:

Buildings, furniture, machinery and fixtures:

Portable equipment 20
Electrical damages 50
Expenses on installation at a new location 250
Electronic equipment 50
Loss of rental income 1,100
Robbery/aggravated theft of content 100
Robbery of valuables in transit 20
Robbery/aggravated theft of cash within the facilities 100
Acts of God (windstorm, hurricane, cyclone, hail) 40

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 24.1 Capital risk management
The Company and its affiliates manage their capital to ensure that their subsidiaries can continue as going concerns, and at 
the same time maximize the return of all their stakeholders by optimizing the balance of debt and equity.

24.2 Liquidity risk management 
Management has ultimate responsibility for the management of the liquidity risk and has prepared an appropriate liquidity 
risk management model to manage funding requirements and short-, medium- and long-term liquidity management. The 
Company and its subsidiaries manage the liquidity risk by maintaining proper reserves, bank and other credit facilities to raise 
new borrowings that it considers appropriate, based on the continuous monitoring of budgeted and actual cash flows, and the 
combination of the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no derivative financial instruments or other similar risks.

25. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash transactions were as follows:

• Recoverable taxes
As of December 31, 2011, the Company offset R$436 of the balance of recoverable taxes against taxes payable, net.

• Corporate restructuring
As mentioned in note 1, the Company performed a corporate restructuring, and the respective transactions did not affect cash.

26. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and authorized for disclosure by the Company’s Management on March 23, 2012.

Francisco Aurélio Martins
Accountant

CRC nº 1 SP 165357/O-0

    12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Services performed and managed by the Company (gross operating revenue)  301,905 312,206
Services performed by third parties and managed by the Company    563,829 491,593

Total services performed under the Company’s responsibility   865,734 803,799
     

The presentation of data is considered important by the Company, since the gross revenue is no longer a volume 
indicator for a large part of civil construction companies. Due to tax benefits and new construction service contracting 
methods focused on the so-called “Open Basis Contracts”, a large portion of the amounts of materials and subcon-
tracted services are directly invoiced against the owners of construction works/customers, and only one portion of the 
construction amount is invoiced against construction companies. For this reason, the Company presents the state-
ment of the amount of services performed as an indicator of the total volume of works performed under its financial, 
technical and administrative responsibility.

Francisco Aurélio Martins
Accountant

CRC nº 1 SP 165357/O-0
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RACIONAL ENGENhARIA

InDePenDenT 
AUDIToR’S RePoRT 

We have audited the accompanying  financial statements of Racional Engenharia Ltda. (“Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, and the statement of income, statement 
of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
The Company’ management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil and the internal controls deemed 
necessary for preparing financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and international standards on auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing selected procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

Basis for qualified opinion
As at December 31, 2011, the Company did not record a reserve for certain contingencies, in the amount of 
approximately R$5,800 thousand. Accordingly, shareholders’ equity is overstated by approximately R$5,800 
thousand, and net income for the year then ended is understated by approximately R$1,500 thousand, net 
of taxes.

Qualified opinion
In our opinion, except for the effect of the adjustment mentioned in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragra-
ph, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Racional Engenha-
ria Ltda. as at December 31, 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil.

Other Matters

Prior-year amounts

The corresponding figures for the year ended December 31, 2010, presented for purposes of comparison, 
were audited by us and our report dated March 31, 2011 contains a qualification regarding the matter refer-
red to in the ‘Basis for qualified opinion’ paragraph.

Supplemental information

The information included in the Appendix - Supplemental Table, relating to the total amount of services per-
formed under the Company’s responsibility as of December 31, 2011, is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information was subject to the 
same auditing procedures referred to above and, in our opinion, is fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The accompanying financial statements have been translated into English for the convenience of readers 
outside Brazil.

São Paulo, March 23, 2012

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Auditores Independentes
CRC nº 2 SP 011609/O-8

Ismar de Moura
Engagement Partner

CRC nº 1 SP 179631/O-2

To the Management and Shareholders of  Racional Engenharia Ltda.

São Paulo/SP

52 Racional Participações512011 Annual Report



FInAnCIAL
STATeMenTS

Balance Sheets

Statements of Income 

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity 

Combined Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity 

Statements of Cash Flow 

Explanatory Notes 

Independent Auditors’ Report

RACIONAL EMPREENDIMENTOS
AND SUBSIDIARIES

54 Racional Participações532011 Annual Report



As at december 31, 2011
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 3   2   5,987   3,017 
Trade accounts receivable 4   -   4,441   2,792 
Properties for sale 6   -   197,847   173,702 
Other receivables   -   1,388   1,028 

Total current assets   2   209,663   180,539 
    
NONCURRENT ASSETS    
Escrow deposits      -   -   57 
Deferred income tax and social contribution 19   -   -   210 
Investments 7   140,121   -   - 
Property, plant and equipment 8   -   4,636   2,956 
Intangible assets   -   118   41 
Investment properties 9   -   107,866   112,345 

Total noncurrent assets   140,121   112,620   115,609 

TOTAL ASSETS   140,123   322,283   296,148  
    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Borrowings and financing 10   -   17,321   10,491 
Certificates of Real Estate Receivables (“CRIs”) 11   -   12,478   12,480 
Trade accounts payable    -   2,870   7,524 
Collaterals and withholdings    -   394   1,147 
Advances from customers 13   -   1,763   998 
Payroll and related taxes    -   148   125 
Taxes payable  12   -   619   512 
Income tax and social contribution   -   775   319 
Other payables   -   1,203   1,102 

Total current liabilities   -   37,571   34,698  
    
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES    
Borrowings and financing 10   -   78,222   66,488 
Certificates of Real Estate Receivables (“CRIs”) 11   -   74,534   86,555 
Provision for civil contingencies 14   -   -   57 
Allowance for investment losses 7   8,167   -   - 
Total noncurrent liabilities   8,167   152,756   153,100 
    
EQUITY    
Capital  15.a)  79,373   79,373   59,430 
Revaluation reserve 15.b)  54,966   54,966   54,966 
Accumulated losses    (2,383)  (2,383)  (6,046)
Total equity   131,956   131,956   108,350 
 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   140,123   322,283   296,148 

BALAnCe SHeeTS

Note Note
Parent

12/31/2011
Parent

12/31/2011
Consolidated

12/31/2011
Consolidated

12/31/2011
Combined
12/31/2010

Combined
12/31/2010

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the period from may 2 (company inception date)
to december 31, 2011
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

For the period from may 2 (company inception date) to december 31, 2011 
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

NET REVENUE FROM SERVICES  16  -   64,310   31,687  
   
COST OF SERVICES 17.a)  -   (18,365)  (10,121)
      
GROSS PROFIT   -   45,945   21,566 
    
OPERATING (EXPENSES) INCOME    
Administrative and selling expenses 17.b)  -   (11,845)  (5,499)
Depreciation and amortization   -   (8,907)  (5,727)
Equity in subsidiaries 7  1,616   -   - 
Allowance for investment losses 7  (3,999)  -   - 
Other   -   (3,237)  (284) 
      
(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE 
FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES)   (2.383)  21.956   10.056 
    
FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES)    
Financial income  17.c)  -   394   950 
Financial expenses  17.c)  -   (15,806)  (7,572) 
      
(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX AND 
SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION  (2,383) 6,544 3,434
    
INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION    
Current 19  -   (2,671)  (2,448)
Deferred 19  -   (210)  210 

 
NET (LOSS) INCOME    (2.383)  3.663   1.196 
     
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (R$/SHARE)   (0,03)  0,05   0,02 
    
There is no other comprehensive income for the current period and the prior periods.

Company formation and capital payment       
on May 2, 2011   2   -   -   2 
Absorption of spun-off portions – corporate restructuring 1  79,371   54,966   -   134,337 
Net loss  -   -   (2,383)   (2,383)
        
     
BALANCES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011   79,373   54,966   (2,383)  131,956

STATeMenTS
oF oPeRATIonS

STATeMenT oF 
CHAnGeS In eQUITY

Note Note
Parent

05/02 to 12/31/2011 Capital
 Combined
12/31/2011        12/31/2010

Revaluation
    reserve    

Accumulated
    losses    

Total
equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the years ended december 31, 2011 and 2010
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

For the period from may 2 (company inception date)
To december 31, 2011
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

BALANCES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2009   47,570   54,966   (7,242)  95,294  
      
  
Capital increase through merger of assets   11,860   -   -   11,860 
Net income    -   -   1,196   1,196 
        
    
BALANCES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010   59,430   54,966   (6,046)  108,350  
      
 
Capital increase through merger of assets   19,943   -   -   19,943 
Net income    -   -   3,663   3,663 

BALANCES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011   79,373   54,966   (2,383)  131,956 

CoMBIneD STATeMenTS 
oF CHAnGeS In eQUITY

STATeMenTS
oF CASH FLoWS

Capital
Revaluation

    reserve    
Accumulated

    losses    
Total

equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Net (loss) income for the period/year  (2,383)  3,663   1,196 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash     
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization  -   8,907   5,727 
Deferred income tax and social contribution  -   210   (210)
Financial expenses on borrowings, financing and taxes in installments  -  14,254   7,095 
Allowance for doubtful debts  -   408   67 
(Reversal) recognition of provision for civil contingencies  -   (57)  116 
Equity in subsidiaries  (1,616)  -   - 
Allowance for investment losses  3,999  -   -  
   
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:   

Trade accounts receivable  -   (2,004)  (753)
Properties for sale  -   (8,959)  (55,201)
Other receivables  -   (360)  (8,174)
Escrow deposits  -   57   (57) 
   

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:   
Trade accounts payable   -   (4,654)  (4,294)
Collaterals and withholdings   -   (753)  1,153 
Advances from customers  -   765   401 
Payroll and related taxes   -   23   (216)
Taxes payable   -   107   (186)
Income tax and social contribution  -   456   188 
Other payables   -   101   (246)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities  -   12,164   (53,394)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets  -   (2,124)  - 

Net cash used in investing activities  -   (2,124)  - 
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Payment of borrowings and financing  -   (24,545)  (26,460)
Borrowings and financing  -   17,475   62,292 
Capital increase  2   -   - 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities  2   (7,070)  35,832 
   
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, NET  2   2,970   (17,562)
   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year  -   3,017   20,579 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year  2   5,987   3,017 
   
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, NET  2   2,970   (17,562)

 Parent 
05/02 to 12/31/2011

 Combined
12/31/2011       12/31/2010
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended december 31, 2011
(Amounts in thousands of Brazilian reais - R$, unless otherwise stated)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
Organized on May 2, 2011, Racional Empreendimentos Ltda. (“Company”) is engaged in the 
intermediation, mediation and management of new businesses or services in general and in holding 
interests in other companies as partner or shareholder.

The Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries included in the consolidated and in the combined 
financial statements are as follows:

• PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários I Ltda. (“PLA”) - engaged in holding interests in other 
companies as partner or shareholder, and management and exploration of own assets, 
including lease. 

• PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários II Ltda. (“PLA II”) - engaged in holding interests in other 
companies as partner or shareholder, and management and exploration of own assets, 
including lease. 

• CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. (“CCN”) - engaged in the operation of Rio de Janeiro’s 
conventions center. 

• CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. (“CCN Torre Norte”) - engaged in the operation, 
management and lease of own and third-party assets or assets held under concession 
agreements, through lease agreements. 

• CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. (“CCN Torre Sul”) - engaged in the 
operation, management and lease of own and third-party assets or assets held under concession 
agreements, through lease agreements. This subsidiary started its operations in 2010.

• Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. (“Centeranel 1”) - engaged in road and railway cargo 
transportation, among others, individually or in intermodal or multimodal facilities, including as 
multimodal transport operator. Operation of activities directly or indirectly related to transportation, 
such as logistics planning, loading, unloading, transshipment, handling and storage of goods and 
containers, port operation, operation and management of storage hubs, general warehouses 
and bonded warehouses. The subsidiary was in preoperating stage until December 31, 2011.
 
• Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. (“Centeranel 2”) - engaged in road and railway cargo 
transportation, among others, individually or in intermodal or multimodal facilities, including as 
multimodal transport operator. Operation of activities directly or indirectly related to transportation, 
such as logistics planning, loading, unloading, transshipment, handling and storage of goods and 
containers, port operation, operation and management of storage hubs, general warehouses 
and bonded warehouses. The subsidiary was in preoperating stage until December 31, 2011.

• Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. (“Centeranel 3”) - engaged in the purchase and 
sale of own and third parties’ real estate properties and management of own and third parties’ 
assets, directly or through other companies, consortiums, projects and other types of ventures 
where it holds interests or acquire equity interests, related to the provision of logistics services. 
This subsidiary started its operations in October 2010.

Corporate restructuring
On November 30, 2011, the Company carried out a corporate restructuring to prepare the group’s 
legal aspects and accounts for new projects. As a result, the Company segregated the engineering 
and construction activities of the real estate businesses and new projects involving the creation of 
structured operations and recognition of strategic portfolios. 

In addition, the corporate restructuring is expected to enhance corporate governance practices.
 
On November 30, 2011, the Company’s shareholders, based on the independent experts’ report, 
approved the merger of the spun-off net assets of the related company Racional Engenharia Ltda., 
as follows:
 

Investments and allowance for investment losses:  
PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários I Ltda.              9
CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. (4,206)
CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. 12,641
CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. 2,171
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. 7,807
Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. 1,614
Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. 114,301    
  134,337

Beginnnig that date, the Company became the direct controlling shareholder of these companies.  

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
 ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

2.1 Statement of compliance
The Company’s financial statements comprise:

•The individual and consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting 
practices adopted in Brazil.
 
• The accounting practices adopted in Brazil comprise the policies set out in the Brazilian 
Corporate Law and the pronouncements, instructions and technical interpretations issued by 
the Accounting Pronouncements Committee (CPC), to conform such accounting policies to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

2.2 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared based on the historical cost, except for certain 
financial instruments measured at their fair values, as described in the accounting policies below. 
The historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the compensation paid in exchange for 
an asset.

The summary of the main accounting policies adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries is 
described in note 2.4.

2.3 Basis of consolidation and investments in subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries, including special purpose entities. Control is obtained when the Company has the 
power to control an entity’s financial and operating policies to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s individual financial statements, the financial information on subsidiaries and joint 
ventures are recognized under the equity method.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and are presented in conformity with 
accounting practices adopted in Brazil and include the financial statements of the Company and 
its subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions and the Company’s investments in 
subsidiaries have been eliminated in consolidation. The consolidated subsidiaries are as follows:

noTeS To THe FInAnCIAL STATeMenTS
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  Type of Equity
  equity interest interest - %

Direct subsidiaries:  
Racional Engenharia Ltda. Full 99,9
Racional Empreendimentos Ltda. Full 99,9

Indirect subsidiaries:  
PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários I Ltda. Full 99,9
PLA Racional Projetos Imobiliários II Ltda. Full 99,9
CCN - Centro de Convenções Ltda. Full 99,9
CCN Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. Full 99,9
CCN Torre Sul Administração e Locação de Bens Ltda. Full 99,9
Centeranel 1 Participações Ltda. Full 99,9
Centeranel 2 Participações Ltda. Full 99,9
Centeranel 3 Logística e Participações Ltda. Full 99,9

Jointly-owned subsidiaries:  
MCT Consortium Proportionate 50,0
CEDAE Consortium Proportionate 65,0

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:

2.4.1 Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents: represented by an imprest cash fund, cash in banks, and short-term investments, whose 
carrying amounts do not differ significantly from their fair values, with original maturities of up to 90 days, considered 
highly liquid or convertible into a know cash amount, and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, 
which are recognized at cost plus income earned through the balance sheet dates, which does not exceed their fair or 
realizable values.

Trade accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts: stated at their realizable value and can include, if deemed 
necessary, an allowance for doubtful accounts, which is calculated based on an estimated amount considered sufficient to 
cover probable losses on collections of receivables, based on an individual analysis of cash receipts, the situation of each 
customer, and the guarantees provided.

Impairment of assets: financial assets are measured at each balance sheet date to identify any asset impairment. They are 
considered as impaired if there is evidence that one or more events occurred after the initial recognition of the financial 
asset, with an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset.

2.4.2 Financial liabilities
The financial liabilities of the Company and its subsidiaries are substantially represented by trade accounts payable, 
borrowings and financing. They are stated at the contracted amount plus contractual charges, which comprise interest 
and inflation adjustment incurred. When applicable, financial liabilities are recognized at fair value, less transaction costs 
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortized cost under the effective interest rate method.

2.4.3 Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties
Stated at acquisition cost, less depreciation and amortization and, when applicable, allowance for impairment. Depreciation and 
amortization are calculated under the straight-line method at rates that take into consideration the estimated economic useful 
lives of assets. Leased properties are recognized in the corresponding asset group as a contra entry to caption “Borrowings 
and financing”, and are depreciated based on the economic useful lives of these assets. Financial charges on borrowings 
incurred over the construction period are capitalized.

2.4.4 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, less any estimated trade discounts and/
or bonus granted to the customer.  

Operating leases
Income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease period. Initial direct costs incurred in 
the trade and preparation of the operating lease are added to the carrying amount of leased assets and also recognized 
under the straight-line method over the lease period.

2.4.5 Borrowings and financing costs
The costs of borrowings and financing directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, 
which necessarily take a substantial amount of time to be ready for the intended use, are added to the cost of such assets 
until the date they are ready for the intended use.

Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings and financing not yet spent on a qualifying asset is 
deducted from borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

2.4.6 Impairment of assets
At the end of each year, the Company and its subsidiaries review the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets 
with finite useful lives to determine if there are any indications that the assets might be impaired. If there is such an 
indication, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any.

The Company and its subsidiaries tested their property, plant and equipment for impairment. Based on tests performed, no 
assets requiring such an impairment allowance were identified.

2.4.7 Adjustment to present value
The Company and its subsidiaries measured the current long-term monetary assets and liabilities subject to measurement 
at present value, and also the short-term monetary assets and liabilities when their impact is considered material on the 
financial statements taken as a whole. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, no adjustment to present value was recorded 
due to its immateriality.  

2.4.8 Taxes payable

Current taxes
The provision for income tax and social contribution is based on the taxable income for the year. Taxable income differs 
from the income shown in the statement of operations because it excludes income or expenses taxable or deductible in 
other years, as well as permanently nontaxable or nondeductible items.  

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax assets are recognized on the taxable temporary differences. The recovery of the deferred tax asset balance 
is reviewed at the balance sheet date and, when it is no longer probable that future taxable income will be available to 
allow the recovery of all or part of assets, the asset balance is adjusted based on the expected recoverable amount. The 
current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

2.4.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, when a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, and its settlement is probable.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
the balance sheet dates, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

The provisions for expected warranty costs related to works are recognized based on management’s best estimate of the 
expenses required to settle the obligation.

2.4.10 Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting practices adopted in Brazil requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions for recognizing certain transactions that affect assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. 
Actual results may differ from those estimates. The main estimates used by the management of the Company and its 
subsidiaries to prepare the financial statements refer to the determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts, the useful 
lives used in the depreciation of property, plant and equipment items, the periods and amounts for realization of property, 
plant and equipment, and the provision for contingencies.

2.4.11 Consolidation
As prescribed by paragraphs 9 and 10 of CPC 36 Consolidated and Separated Financial Statements, the Company is not 
disclosing its consolidated income statements since its parent company Racional Participações Ltda. is ultimately disclosing 
its consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. 

2.4.12 Combined financial statements
The combined financial statements prepared in accordance with the consolidation criteria set out in the accounting practices 
adopted in Brazil, include the financial statements of the Company and the companies mentioned in note 2.3, and were 
prepared to show the Company’s financial statements as if the corporate restructuring mentioned in note 1 had been 
carried out on January 1, 2010, as the companies were under common control and management. The combination of 
balance sheet and income statement accounts and other information in the combined financial statements corresponds to 
the sum of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, according to the nature of each balance. 
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
 As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the balance is broken down as follows:

  Parent Consolidated Combined
  12/31/2011 12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Cash 2 9 15
Banks - 2,235 1,052
Short-term investments:   
Banco Itaú-Unibanco - Bank Certificates of Deposit (CDB) (*) - 3,688 28
Banco Bradesco - Bank Certificates of Deposit (CDB) (*) - 55 300
Banco Votorantim - Bank Certificates of Deposit (CDB) (*)   -         - 1,622

 
   2 5,987 3,017

(*)  Cash investments yield an average monthly interest rate of 101.16% of the interbank deposit certificate (CDI).

Short-term investments can be immediately converted into a known cash amount and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
change in value. 

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
  Consolidated Combined
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Trade accounts receivable 4,849 2,859
Allowance for doubtful accounts      (408)     (67)

   4,441 2,792

The consolidated aging list of trade receivables billed as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, is as follows:
     
   Consolidated Combined
   12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Current 4,441 2,792
Past-due up to 180 days    408      67
Over 181 days 4,849 2,859

The Company and its subsidiaries recognized an allowance for doubtful accounts for trade receivables past-due over 180 days.

5. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Subsidiary CCN Torre Sul entered into a lease agreement with PLA. The lease started in January 2010. 

Intragroup loan transactions are interest free. 

6. PROPERTIES FOR SALE
Comprise basically buildings, located in the land at Rodovia Raposo Tavares, in São Paulo, which will be used for activities related 
to road and railway transportation, and goods and containers handling, storage and lease.  

7. INVESTMENTS AND ALLOWANCE FOR INVESTMENT LOSSES 
Represented by equity interests in subsidiaries from November 30 to December de 31, 2011.

Investments and the allowance for investment losses as at December 31, 2011 in the parent are as follows:

Investment description 

Thousands
of common

 shares held

Share in
paid in

capital - %
Equity

(deficit)

Net income
(loss) for

 the period  
Equity in

subsidiaries 

Balance of
investments

(allowance for
investment losses)

12/31/2011

CCN 2,701 99,97 (5,304) (1,098) (1,098) (5,304)
Centeranel 1 3,669 99,99 7,787 (20) (20) 7,787
Centeranel 2 829 99,99 1,519 (95) (95) 1,519
Centeranel 3 66,062 99,99 115,552 1,251 1,251 115,552
CCN Torre Norte 6 99,99 12,812 171 171 12,812
CCN Torre Sul 6 99,99 2,337 166 166 2,337
PLA 1 99,99 (2,892) (2,901) (2,901) (2,892)
Other   143 143    143        143

       (2,383) 131,954 
Accounted for as:    

Noncurrent assets - investments      140,121
Noncurrent liabilities - allowance for investment losses      8,167
Income - equity in subsidiaries     1,616 
Income - allowance for investment losses     (3,999) 

 
Changes in the Company’s investments from December 1 to 31, 2011 are as follows:

Investments  12/31/2011

Opening balances - May 2, 2011  -
Merger of spun-off net assets (*)  134,337
Equity in subsidiaries  1,616
Allowance for investment losses     (3,999)

Closing balances  131,954
   
Investments - noncurrent assets  140,121
Allowance for investment losses - noncurrent liabilities     (8,167)

   131,954
(*) See note 1.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In consolidated and combined, comprise:
12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Annual
depreciation

rate - % Cost

Accumulated
depreciation/
amortization net net

Facilities 10 850 (55) 795 70
Machinery and equipment 10 733 (208) 525 420
Furniture and fixtures 10 998 (144) 854 542
IT equipment 20 244 (90) 154 129
Leasehold improvements 10 2,679 (371) 2,308 1,795

 
   5,504 (868) 4,636 2,956

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

     Depreciation and
     Cost amortization net

 
Balances as at December 31, 2010   3,459 (503) 2,956 
Additions in the year   2,045 (365) 1,680

 
Balances as at December 31, 2011   5,504 (868) 4,636

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010
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9. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
In consolidated and combined, comprise:

Annual 
depreciation and

amortization rate - %     Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

and amortization net net

Buildings 4 118,810 (14,408) 104,402 110,296
Facilities, machinery and other assets 10 2,008 (341) 1,667 805
Leasehold improvements 10     1,930     (133)     1,797     1,244 
    122,748 (14,882) 107,866 112,345

The balances recorded in “Buildings” refer to buildings leased in the cities of Rio de Janeiro and São Paulo. As mentioned in 
note 11, the properties used by subsidiaries CCN Torre Norte and CCN Torre Sul were leased for an average period of 10 years 
and will be adjusted based on the General Market Price Index (IGP-M).  These companies securitized there receivables through 
a structured transaction with Banco Unibanco S.A., for the issuance of Real Estate Credit Notes (CCI).

Changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

    Cost Depreciation Net  

Balances as at December 31, 2010   122,497 (10,152) 112,345
Additions in the year   251 (4,730) (4,479)  

Balances as at December 31, 2011   122,748 (14,882) 107,866

    
Review of the useful life of assets
The Company and its subsidiaries reviewed the remaining useful life of assets classified as investment property, and identified 
no need to make changes.

Measurement at fair value
The fair value of investment property was determined based on market information, which is properly treated for being used in 
determining the real estate project value.

To support the appraisals, cash flows were prepared through 2034, which do not consider any inflation that may be recorded 
in the period. The average discount rate applied to cash flows was 11%. Expected expenses on building maintenance were 
included in the calculation.
 

The amounts of the adjustment to fair value are as follows:  
     Consolidated
     12/31/2011  
Investment property in operation     257,266
     

10. BORROWINGS AND FINANCING Consolidated  Combined
  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

National Bank for Economic and Social Development (BNDES)  
Centeranel 3 (a) 75,428 60,615
CCN (b) 7,667 10,733
Banco Votorantim (c) 186 2,650
Banco Santander (d) 4,026 683
Banco Itaú-Unibanco (e) 468 2,298
Banco Bradesco (f)   7,768           - 
  95,543 76,979
    
Current 17,321 10,491
Noncurrent 78,222 66,488

(a)  On November 25, 2009, subsidiary Centeranel 3 entered into a financing agreement with BNDES for the construction of 
commercial real estate properties. The financing totaling R$78,100 was released as subloans as follows: (i) R$28,671 on May 
11, 2010; (ii) R$13,671 on August 10, 2010; (iii) R$5,000 on October 8, 2010; (iv) R$8,000 on November 16, 2010; (v) R$5,000 
on December 10, 2010; (vi) R$10,000 on February 14, 2011; and (vii) R$7,758 on June 24, 2011.

Principal is subject to average interests of 4.41% per year above the long-term interest rate (TJLP). This amount is repayable 
through March 2018. The financing is collateralized by the financed properties and recorded in “Properties for sale”, in 
current assets.

(b) BNDES borrowing for the construction of the Conventions Center by subsidiary CCN, which bears interest pegged to the 
TJLP plus spread of 2% per year and maturity of the principal and interest in 2014. The borrowing is collateralized by:

• Assignment of the Company’s receivables.
• Guarantee of shareholders and the Company.
• The Company’s properties in the amount of R$16,330.

The agreement contains financial and non-financial covenants, such as:

• Utilization of the funds received solely to carry out the project.
• Notify the creditor of any event that may change the project and what actions will be taken.
•  Submit to the creditor, within 180 days after the release of the last portion of the borrowing, the license to operate the asset.
•  File by June 30 every year, the financial statements of subsidiary CCN audited by an independent audit firm registered 
with the Brazilian Securities and Exchange Commission (CVM).
•  Submit to the creditor any amendments to its bylaws and the minutes of Annual and Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meetings 
and Board of Directors’ meetings.
• Have insurance for the asset pledged as collateral.
• Do not assign or transfer the agreement rights and obligations, or sell or dispose of the financed asset without the 
creditor’s authorization.
• Dully pay all tax, labor, social security, and other social obligations.
•  Do not merge, spin off or carry out any other type of corporate restructuring without the creditor’s prior consent.
•  Do not apply for bankruptcy. Neither should the Company have a bankruptcy petition without defense within 30 days.
•  Do not be subject to in-court or out-of-court protest in view of lack of payment of debt at the amount of R$1,000 or more.
• Do not rent, lease or transfer an asset acquired in view of the financed project.
• The Company will not sell the assets pledged without the creditor’s authorization.
•  All required efforts should be expended to prevent the liquidation, termination, takeover or revocation of the Public Service 
Concession Agreement entered into by the Company and the City of Rio de Janeiro.

(c) Refers to the borrowing from Banco Votorantim for construction of the Conventions Center, which bears interest equivalent 
to the CDI plus spread of 1.3% per year, and matures in 2014.  This borrowing is collateralized by guarantors. 

(d)  Refers to the borrowing from Banco Santander for construction of the Conventions Center, which bears interest equivalent 
to the CDI plus spread of 1.3% per year, and matures in 2014.  This borrowing is collateralized by promissory notes.

(e)  Refers to the borrowing from Banco Unibanco for construction of the Conventions Center, which bears interest equivalent 
to the CDI plus spread of 1.3% per year, and matures in 2014.  This borrowing is collateralized by guarantors.

(f)  Refers to the borrowing from Banco Bradesco for working capital purposes, which bears interest equivalent to the CDI plus 
spread of 1.3% per year, and matures in 2016.  This borrowing is collateralized by guarantors.

As at December 31, 2011, all covenants are being properly complied.

The maturities of long-term borrowings and financing are as follows:
   Consolidated

Maturity  R$
2013  10,837
2014  16,001
2015  13,861
2016  23,190
After 2016  14,333 
   78,222

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010
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11. CERTIFICATES OF REAL ESTATE RECEIVABLES (“CRIs”)
 
  Consolidated  Combined
  12/31/2011 12/31/2010 
CCN Torre Norte (a) 70,446 80,102
CCN Torre Sul (b) 16,566 18,933

Total 87,012 99,035
     
Current 12,478 12,480
Noncurrent 74,534 86,555

     
(a) On October 17, 2007, the subsidiary CCN Torre Norte and Sulamerica Companhia Nacional de Seguros entered into the 
Torre Norte Lease Agreement (“Agreement”), related to the building under construction in the Convention Center in the city 
and state of Rio de Janeiro, which is effective for 120 months. The lease started in April 2009.

The subsidiary CCN Torre Norte raised funds through the securitization of such lease receivables with the corresponding 
issuance of Certificates of Real Estate Receivables (CRIs), pegged to real estate credit notes (CCI).  The CRIs issued through 
December 31, 2010 total R$96,537, and are repaid in ten annual installments until April 2019, plus interest of 10.8% per year 
and annual adjustment based on the TR (a managed prime rate). Principal amortization and interest payment started in April 
2010. Under the Receivables Assignment Agreement, the Company assigns to the fiduciary agent the receivables arising from 
the Agreement, which correspond to principal, agreed adjustments and all the contractual guarantees, fines and indemnities.

The CRIs are collateralized by: (a) assignment of the receivables under the Agreement; and (b) collateralization of the shares of 
subsidiary CCN.

(b)  On July 25, 2008, the subsidiaries CCN Torre Sul and PLA entered into the Agreement for Construction, Unusual Lease and 
Other Covenants (“Agreement”), for the lease of Torre Sul by PLA, located in the Convention Center in the city and state of Rio 
de Janeiro. The lease term started in January 2010. 

CCN Torre Sul raised funds through the securitization of such lease receivables with the corresponding issuance of CRIs, 
pegged to CCIs.  The CRIs issued through December 31, 2010 total R$20,115, and are repaid in 102 monthly installments until 
June 2018, plus average interest of 10.3% per year and annual adjustment based on the TR (a managed prime rate). Principal 
amortization and interest payment started in February 2010. 

Under the Receivables Assignment Agreement, the subsidiary CCN Torre Sul assigns part of the receivables arising from the 
Agreement to the fiduciary agent, corresponding to 64.9294% of the receivables earned, agreed adjustments, and all the 
contractual guarantees, fines and indemnities. 

The CRIs are collateralized by: (a) assignment of the receivables under the Agreement; and (b) collateralization of the shares of 
subsidiary CCN.

PLA is a related party. Results might be different had this transaction been conducted with unrelated parties.  The Company’s 
management understands that the agreement terms and conditions are similar to market terms and conditions.

The maturities of long-term CRIs are as follows:

   Consolidated 
Maturity  R$

2013  12,008
2014  12,023
2015  12,023
2016  12,023
After 2016  38,477  
   86,554
   

12. TAXES PAYABLE
  Consolidated Combined
  12/31/2011 12/31/2010 
Tax on revenue (COFINS) 201 103
Tax on revenue (PIS) 81 46
Service tax (ISS) 130 89
Withholding income taxes 51 232
Other taxes payable 156   42 
  619 512

13. ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS
Refer to prepayments from customers in view of services not yet provided, which are transferred to profit or loss when services 
are provided.

14. PROVISION FOR CIVIL CONTINGENCIES
   Combined 
   12/31/2010  
Civil  57    
   57

A provision is recognized for all matters under litigation, in an amount considered sufficient to cover probable losses, based on an 
assessment made the outside legal counsel. 

The Company recognized a provision for lawsuits whose likelihood of loss is probable.

Changes in provision for tax, civil and labor contingencies for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

   12/31/2011  
Balances at beginning of year  57
Reversal of provisions  (57)
Balances at end of year     -
   

15. EQUITY

a) Capital
As at December 31, 2011, capital in the amount of R$79,373 is represented by 79,373,000 shares with par value of R$1.00 each.  
The Company’s controlling shareholder is Racional Participações Ltda.

b. Revaluation
As at September 20, 2007, subsidiaries Centeranel 1, Centeranel 2, and Centeranel 3 revalued their land and recognized a 
revaluation reserve totaling R$54,966.

16. NET REVENUE FROM SERVICES 
  Combined

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010  
Revenue from rental 23,187 13,750
Revenues from services 47,686 21,021
(-) Taxes  (6,563)  (3,084)  
  64,310 31,687
   
 
17. INFORMATION ON THE NATURE OF THE COSTS AND EXPENSES RECOGNIZED IN THE STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

a) Cost of services provided
  Combined

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Materials and services 4,516 3,697
Personnel 1,264 67
Utilities and services 2,259 1,181
Occupation 10,326   5,176  
  18,365 10,121
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b) Administrative and selling expenses
  Combined

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Personnel 3,808 1,700
General 5,236 1,796
Occupancy 996 742
(Reversal) recognition of provision for contingencies (57) 57
Tax expenses 83 104
Utilities and services   1,779 1,100  
  11,845 5,499
    
c) Financial income (expenses)
  Combined

  12/31/2011 12/31/2010

Financial expenses  
Interest on borrowings and financing (14,254) (7,095)
Interest payable (114) (9)
Other financial expenses  (1,438)   (468)  

  (15,806) (7,572)
Financial income  
Income from short-term investments 390 859
Interest receivable          4      91  
    394 950

18. MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
No amount was paid as: (a) post-employment benefits (pension, other retirement benefits, post-employment life insurance and 
post-employment health care plan); (b) long-term benefits (leave of absence for length of service or other leaves, retirement 
or other benefits for length of service or long-term disability benefits); (c) employment termination benefits; or (d) share-based 
compensation.

19. INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
The Company recognizes income tax and social contribution based on the deemed income tax regime, i.e., based on the net 
revenue for the year. Recognition is as follows:  

  Parent Combined

  12/31/2011 12/31/2011 12/31/2010  
Reconciliation of income tax and social contribution at effective rate:   
(Loss) income before income tax and social contribution (2,383) 6,544 3,434
Statutory rate   34%   34%   34%
Income tax and social contribution at statutory rate 810 (2,225) (1,168)

Equity in subsidiaries (810) - -
Effects on companies taxed by deemed income (*)         -   (656) (1,070)  
Income tax and social contribution charged to profit or loss          - (2,881) (2,238)
   
(*) The subsidiaries CCN Torre Norte, CCN Torre Sul, Centeranel 1, Centeranel 2 and Centeranel 3 opted for the deemed income 
regimen in 2011 and 2010.
  
Deferred
    Combined
    12/31/2010  
Tax loss carryforwards   617
Statutory rate   34%

Deferred income tax and social contribution - noncurrent assets    210

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
20.1 Capital risk management
The Company and its subsidiaries manage their capital to ensure that they can continue as going concerns while maximizing 
return for all stakeholders through the optimization of debt and equity balance.

20.2 Liquidity risk management 
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the administration of the liquidity risk and has prepared a proper liquidity 
risk management model to manage funding requirements as well as liquidity in the short-, medium- and long-terms. The 
Company and its subsidiaries manage the liquidity risk by maintaining proper reserves, bank and other credit facilities to raise 
new borrowings that it considers appropriate, based on the continuous monitoring of budgeted and actual cash flows, and 
the combination of the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were no derivative financial instruments or other similar risks.

20.3 Sensibility analyses
The Company is exposed to the risk of changes in the interest rates of borrowings and financings.  
The analyze was prepared regarding an exposure in the fluctuation of the TR and TJLP, since are the main index for borrowings 
and financings.

The following table shows the sensibility analyses for the Company as of December 31, 2011, based on the scenarios:

  Scenario

Type Risk Probable (a) Possible (b) Remote (c)

Interest to be incurred - TR Increase in the TR 8,875 23,667 -
Interest to be incurred - TJLP Increase in the TJLP 27,421 36,562 18,281
    

(a) The rate has no change as of December 31, 2011. 
(b) Increment of two percent points in the rates, compared to the possible scenario.
(c) Decrease of two percent points in the rates, compared to the possible scenario.

21. INSURANCE  
As at December 31, 2011, the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ property, plant and equipment are insured against fire, theft, 
collision and sundry risks, at amounts considered sufficient by management to cover potential losses. 

Coverage - buildings   Consolidated  
Fire, lightning and explosion   95,150
Flooding   200
Electrical damages   6,500
Pumbling damages    1,500
Facilities and equipment   5,000
  

22. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (COMBINED)

Non-cash transactions: 

• Corporate restructuring
As mentioned in note 1, the Company carried out a corporate restructuring which did not affect cash.

23. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The disclosure of the financial statements was approved and authorized by Management on March 23, 2012.

Francisco Aurélio Martins
Accountant

CRC nº 1 SP 165357/O-0
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InDePenDenT 
AUDIToR’S RePoRT

We have audited the accompanying individual and consolidated financial statements of Racional Empre-
endimentos Ltda. (“Company”), identified as Parent, which comprise the balance sheets as at December 
31, 2011, and the statements of operations, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash 
flows for the period from May 2 (inception date) to December 31, 2011, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

We have also audited the Company’s combined financial statements, identified as Combined, which 
comprise the combined balance sheets as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the combined state-
ments of operations, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then 
ended (the combined entities are described in note 1), and a summary of significant accounting practices 
and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual, consolidated 
and combined financial statements in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We con-
duct our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the as-
sessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud or er-
ror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effec-
tiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reaso-
nable basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion on the individual financial statements
In our opinion, the individual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the individual and 
consolidated financial position of Racional Empreendimentos Ltda. as at December 31, 2011, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the period from May 2 to December 31, 2011 in accordance with accoun-
ting practices adopted in Brazil. 

Opinion on the combined financial statements
In our opinion, the combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the combined fi-
nancial position of Racional Empreendimentos Ltda. as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and its combined 
financial performance and its combined cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
practices adopted in Brazil.

Other matters

Combined financial statements

The combined financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, presented with the 
individual and consolidated financial statements, were prepared to show the Company’s financial statements 
as if the corporate restructuring mentioned in note 1 had been carried out on January 1, 2010, as the compa-
nies were jointly controlled and managed. The combination of balance sheet and income statement accounts 
and other information in the combined financial statements corresponds to the sum of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses, according to the nature of each balance. The combination process differs from the 
consolidation process because investments are not eliminated. The combined financial statements are being 
presented only as an additional analyses to third parties and do not represent the individual or consolidated 
financial statements of a legal entity.

The accompanying financial statements have been translated into English for the convenience of readers 
outside Brazil.

São Paulo, March 23, 2012

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU
Auditores Independentes
CRC nº 2 SP 011609/O-8

Ismar de Moura
Engagement Partner

CRC nº 1 SP 179631/O-2

RACIONAL EMPREENDIMENTOS
AND SUBSIDIARIES

To the Management and Shareholders of Racional Empreendimentos Ltda.

São Paulo/SP
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